
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

APOLOGIES Committee Services  DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, 
PERFORMANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE 
Paul Dodson  

Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

    
   13 July 2022  

Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 
 

PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 

on THURSDAY 21 JULY 2022 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note: All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for 
those wishing to observe remotely.  Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can 
continue to do so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak please submit a Public Access form (to be submitted by 12noon 
on the working day before the Committee meeting).  All requests will be considered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRMAN Councillor W Stamp, CC 

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, CC 

COUNCILLORS M R Edwards 
A S Fluker 
A L Hull 
J V Keyes 
N J Skeens 
E L Stephens 
Mrs J C Stilts 
Mrs M E Thompson 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

AGENDA 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY 21 JULY 2022 
 
1. Chairman's Notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2022, (copy enclosed).  

 
4. Disclosure of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 

Registrable Interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on 
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for 
Members. 
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interest as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise through the meeting). 
 

5. Public Participation   
 
 To receive the views of members of the public, of which prior notification in writing has 

been received (no later than noon on the Tuesday prior to the day of the meeting). 
 
Should you wish to submit a question please complete the online form at: 
www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation. 
 

6. Internal Audit Report  (Pages 15 - 16) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Resources (copy enclosed). 

 
 a) Progress Report  (Pages 17 - 26) 

 
 b) Follow-Up of Recommendations Report  (Pages 27 - 36) 

 
 c) Workforce Management - 2021/2022  (Pages 37 - 52) 

 
 d) Customer Relationship Management (CRM)- 2021/2022  (Pages 53 - 66) 

 
 e) Internal Audit Annual Report and Annual Statement of Assurance - 2021/2022  

(Pages 67 - 84) 
 

 f) Risk Maturity - 2022/2023  (Pages 85 - 106) 
 

 g) Corporate Governance - 2022/2023  (Pages 107 - 118) 
 
 
 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation


Page 3 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

7. Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS)  (Pages 119 - 134) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed). 
 

8. Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Action Update- Annual Review  (Pages 135 - 
154) 

 
 To consider the report of the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Officers (copy enclosed). 

 
9. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 

urgent   
 
 

 
 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
In the event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green 
running man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  
Please gather there and await further instruction. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room. 
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 
 

Lift 

The lift is currently out of order.  Please contact committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  for any 
queries. 

 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
mailto:committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

MINUTES of 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
9 JUNE 2022 

PRESENT 

Chairman Councillor W Stamp, CC 

Vice-Chairman Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, CC 

Councillors M R Edwards, A S Fluker, A L Hull, E L Stephens, 
Mrs J C Stilts and Mrs M E Thompson 

In attendance Mrs P A Channer, M W Helm and K M H Lagan 

1. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman welcomed all present and took the Committee through some 
housekeeping arrangements for the meeting. 

The Chairman then thanked Councillor Mrs J C Stilts, past Chairman along with the 
previous Committee Members for their work over the last year.  She also thanked 
Councillor Mrs J L Fleming for being Vice-Chairman for this municipal year. 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor N J Skeens. 

3. MINUTES 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 24 March 2022 
be approved and confirmed. 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

Councillor Mrs J L Fleming declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Member of Essex 
County Council on any matter that may arise during the meeting. 

Councillor W Stamp declared that she was a Member of Essex County Council but 
there was nothing pecuniary or non-pecuniary on the agenda for this meeting. 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

The Chairman advised that two submissions had been received. 

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

The first, a written submission from Mr Horner which the Chairman proceeded to read 
out.  In his submission Mr Horner raised questions regarding the Council’s planning 
pre-application advice.  The Director of Service Delivery responded to these questions. 

The second submission was from Mr Fittock who was present at the meeting.  He 
spoke about the 75% trigger in relation to delivery of strategic allocations.  In response 
the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance advised he would provide a 
written response to the questions raised. 

In response to a Point of Order raised by Councillor A S Fluker regarding a member of 
the public being able to submit a written question, the Chairman advised that this would 
be looked into, but she had made a decision to read the questions submitted by Mr 
Horner and should Mr Fittock not wanted to attend he could have contacted the 
Council. 

6. NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCIL CONSTITUTION AND SCHEME OF DELEGATION 

The Committee received a Motion (as set out below) from Councillor K M H Lagan, 
which in accordance with Procedure Rule 4 had been referred to this Committee by the 
Council at its meeting on 31 March 2022. 

Motion: 
To ensure best value and scrutiny is undertaken as part of the council’s park and 
waterfront asset management and associated operational processes, that the scheme 
of delegation to the Director of Service delivery (DOSD) be amended as follows: 

17 – Asset Management: 

(d) To negotiate the terms of new leases, including interim and initial rent both at 
market rent and in those cases where existing tenants have a statutory right to 
call for a new lease on expiry of the current term. The Director of service 
delivery to provide options to the town ward members who will review and 
determine the review of existing or issuance of new leases up to an annual 
value of £15,000 and duration not exceeding seven years. 

(e) Provide detailed report options for determination by the towns ward members 
as (d) above in relation to leases with an annual value in excess of £15,000, but 
not exceeding £25,000, or tenure in excess of 7 years but not exceeding 14 
years. Sections (d) and (e), the results of the recommendation by members to 
be ratified at Strategy and Resources Committee. 

44. Operational issues relating to:

a) Parks and public open spaces including waterfront and Quays: To develop
proposals and options for lettings and leases on buildings which must be
referred to the Local Ward Member review Group for determination.

b) Formal recreation areas. The development of proposals for the letting of any
stalls, kiosks and other operations thereon including lettings such as funfairs,
circuses and other short-term lettings shall be developed and submitted the
Local Ward Member Group for determination.

c) To provide proposals to the local Ward member review group on any
community assets, including buildings, structures etc.) on any potential change
of use from that intended for determination.

Councillor Lagan advised that the intention of his Motion was took at change.  He 
requested that his Motion be withdrawn from the agenda, not debated and also 
removed from the Council.  This was duly seconded and noted by the Committee. 

Page 6



 

RECOMMENDED that the Council notes the position as now advised by Councillor K 
M H Lagan to withdraw his Motion and takes no further action on this Motion. 

7. NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCIL CONSTITUTION AND QUESTIONS TO THE 
LEADER  

The Committee received a Motion (as set out below) from Councillor A S Fluker, which 
in accordance with Procedure Rule 4 had been referred to this Committee by the 
Council at its meeting on 31 March 2022. 

Motion: 
Part 4 of the Rules of Procedure, Rule 1, 3 (m) be amended from: 
(m) Questions (which may be made without notice) to the Leader of the Council (or 

in his absence the Deputy Leader) (other than at the Annual Meeting, and at the 
meetings referred to in (h) above) for a maximum of 15 minutes and not beyond 
10.00pm unless such period is extended with the mutual agreement of the 
Chairman of the Council and the Leader (or Deputy Leader).  

to: 
(m) Questions (which may be made without notice) to the Leader of the Council (or 

in his absence the Deputy Leader) (other than at the Annual Meeting, and at the 
meetings referred to in (h) above) for a maximum of 15 minutes allocated to the 
asking of questions.  Where the Leader or (Deputy Leader in their absence) is 
unable to answer a question, the answer will be given by a written response 
from the Leader to all members within 5 working days. 

Councillor Fluker presented his Motion to the Committee and provided further 
background information regarding it.  He hoped that the Committee would support his 
Motion as tabled. 

The Leader of the Council commented on the Motion advising that she felt the 
constitution was sound and allowed for open and transparent answers to be given at 
the time the question was asked.  It was the Leaders’ prerogative to respond in writing. 

During the discussion that followed Members were reminded that the Constitution 
made provision for questions to be asked with notice and these along with responses 
would then be tabled at the meeting. 

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor A S Fluker requested a 
recorded vote.  This was duly seconded and voting on approval of the Motion from 
Councillor Fluker was as follows: 

For the recommendation: 
Councillor A S Fluker. 

Against the recommendation: 
Councillors M R Edwards, Mrs J L Fleming, A L Hull, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and 
Mrs M E Thompson. 

Abstention: 
Councillor W Stamp. 

The Motion was therefore not supported. 

RECOMMENDED that the Motion in the name of Councillor A S Fluker (as detailed 
above) not be agreed. 

Page 7



 

8. REVIEW OF CORPORATE PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance that required the Committee to undertake a quarterly review of the 
Thematic Strategies performance, as assurance that performance was being managed 
effectively to achieve the corporate outcomes as set out in the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2021 - 2023.  Appendix 1 to the report provided an overview of performance as at 
the end of Quarter 4 (Q4) (January - March 2022).  Appendices 2 – 4 detailed the full 
list of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each strategy, with highlighted changes in 
readiness for 2022 / 23 performance monitoring. 

It was noted that since adoption of the Corporate Strategies, in response to local 
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic and the needs of the local communities, resources 
had been redeployed and reprioritised.  The report provided a summary of any 
concerns affecting the corporate outcomes for the three Thematic Strategies with 
further detail provided in Appendix 1. 

Members were informed that three KPIs had been identified as ‘At Risk’ for this quarter 
and these were detailed in the report.   

The Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager explained that the format of 
Appendix 1 had been revised following feedback from the Committee and now 
incorporated a summary page to show high level delivery. 

The Chairman moved the recommendations in the report and these were duly 
seconded. 

In response to questions from the Committee, the following information was provided 
by Officers: 

 Satisfaction numbers were based on feedback from the annual resident’s
survey and the drop in levels could be due to bigger percentage fluctuations
and less responses being received.  Members were advised to apply some
caution when looking at the data as if one or two people were less happy this
would have some sway in the figures.  There was not a Key Performance
Indicator for this and satisfaction overall had improved, and due to ongoing
working regarding this area was not there triggering as red.

 Flytipping was pursued by the Council wherever possible.  The Director of
Service Delivery agreed to circulate further information and some statistics
outside of the meeting.

 The number of satisfaction survey received had recently been shared with
Members but the Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager agreed
to circulate this to the Committee outside of the meeting.

 It was requested that where graphs were shown in reports that the sample
number was also shown.

 The One Maldon Group were working closely with the Health Service to ensure
that delays regarding residents receiving counselling etc.  It was noted that
delays had been caused by the recent Covid-19 pandemic and that mental
health was a key priority for the Integrated Care Board (previously the Clinical
Commissioning Group).

 Changes to the level of web traffic on the Visit Maldon site was largely due to
seasonal changes and customer demand.

 It was noted that the Council was looking at a number of commercial
opportunities, including attractions.

Page 8



 

 The drop in the number of staff attending the ‘every contact counts’ training was
due to turnover in the customer facing staff, however this was to be introduced
as a programme of work.

 The Director of Service Delivery provided an update on the recent cancellation
of the Monday Market at Promenade Park and advised that there had been
communications issues but these had been addressed.

The Chairman moved the recommendations as set out in the report and these were 
duly agreed by assent. 

RESOLVED 

(i) That the information as set out in this report and Appendix 1 to the report be 
noted with priority focus given to the Strategic Outcome level performance;  

(ii) That Members confirm they are assured through this review that corporate 
performance is being managed effectively;  

(iii) That Members note the Key Performance Indicators that will be monitored for 
2022 / 23.  

Councillor M W Helm left the meeting during this item of business and did not return. 

9. REVIEW OF CORPORATE RISK - QUARTER 4 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance asking Members to undertake a quarterly review of the Corporate Risk 
Register as assurance that the Council’s corporate risks were being managed 
effectively.  A table of the Corporate Risk Register, latest ratings and officer 
commentary was attached as Appendix 1 to the report  

It was noted that there had been no changes in risk scoring since Quarter Three.  One 
new risk had been added regarding failure to manage the operational impact of the 
cost of living crisis and this was highlighted in the report. 

The Chairman put the recommendations as set out in the report and these were duly 
seconded. 

A debate ensued and Officers provided the following information to the Committee: 

 The Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance provided an update on 
the Local Development Plan (LDP), and discussions on this topic at recent 
Council and Working Group meetings.  It was noted that the Levelling-Up and 
Regeneration Bill was going through Parliament, but there was no certainty of 
changes that may come in as a result.  Some Local Authorities had chosen to 
pause their LDP and been challenged on this by Local Government,  The 
Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance advised that he felt the 
lowest risk to the Council was to continue with LDP work and confirm to any 
changes in legislation that may come in. 

 Affordable Housing Delivery had been good over the last few years, although 
the Council was continuing to monitor delivery it was a risk until it came into 
fruition. 

Page 9



 

 Members had recently attending a briefing regarding the Council’s budget and 
this had outlined a number of activities which were going on around delivering a 
balanced budget.  The Council had processes in place, revised assumptions 
and regularly reported to the Strategy and Resources Committee. 

 The recruitment of staff into specialist roles was an ongoing challenge.  Within 
planning there was a national shortage of planners.  Officers were speaking to 
the Planning Advisory Service regarding attracting officers to the Council along 
with some other innovations.  The Specialist Services Manager highlighted how 
this was a national problem. 

 In response to a question regarding the impact of the cost of living on Council 
staff, Members were advised of the wellbeing programme available to all staff 
along with counselling service and mental health first aiders. 

 Commuted Sums go into an earmarked reserve and the Council had been 
made aware of projects coming forward. 

 In response to a question regarding how the Council’s salary levels compared 
with other Authorities, the Director of Service Delivery advised there was an 
issue regarding specialist pay.  A benchmarking exercise was required and the 
Council was looking at other solutions to attract more candidates. 

The Chairman put the recommendations as set out in the report and these were duly 
agreed by assent. 

RESOLVED 

(i) That the Corporate Risk Register attached as Appendix 1 to the report be 
noted;  

(ii) That Members are assured through this review that corporate risk is being 
managed effectively;  

(iii) That Members challenge risk where the Committee feels that the Council’s 
corporate goals may not be achieved.  

10. COVID ECONOMIC RECOVERY FUNDING - ACTIVITY UPDATE

The Committee received the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance providing an update on the COVID Economic Funding Activity from 
October 2021 to date. 

The Committee received an informative presentation from the Lead Specialist 
Prosperity providing further details of the activities delivered as part of the Welcome 
Back Fund and Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG).  These were also detailed in the 
report and it was noted that they had been developed as part of the Government’s 
response to the Covid-19 Pandemic to support businesses and communities.  In 
addition to these, Essex County Council via the Department of Health and Social 
Care’s Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF), made available a COVID Safe 
Tourism and Public Spaces Fund and High Street COVID Improvement Schemes and 
a list of the linked activities was detailed in the report. 

It was noted that all work undertaken had been in accordance with the relevant 
guidance and continued management of the ARG commissioned business and skills 
support projects would conclude in March 2023. 

Page 10



 

The Chairman moved the recommendation set out in the report and this was duly 
seconded. 

In response to a question regarding the allocation of business grants the Lead 
Specialist Prosperity agreed to review the details in relation to Southminster.  It was 
noted that there had been regular Member and Parish Council engagement.  She 
advised that a copy of the presentation would be sent to all Members. 

The Chairman thanked the Lead Specialist Prosperity for her work and then put the 
recommendation which was duly agreed. 

RESOLVED that the work that has been delivered as part of the COVID Economic 
Recovery and Transformation (CERT) programme and the on-going work to support 
our economies be noted. 

Councillor K M H Lagan left the meeting during this item of business and did not return. 

11. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS UPDATE

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance updating Members on the actions identified in the 2020 / 21 Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS). 

In June 2021 this Committee had approved the new format for the AGS and agreed 
that progress on the action plan would be reported to and reviewed by the Committee. 
The report provided a table of the key actions defined in the 2020 / 21 AGS along with 
Officer updates for Members’ consideration.  The Programmes, Performance and 
Governance Manager reported that of the two outstanding actions one was now 
complete and the remainder ‘Draw out and link all of our policies and their objectives 
through a review of the Local Development Plan (e.g. Corporate Plan, Climate 
Change)’ would roll into the 2021 / 22 AGS Action Plan as an ongoing item. 

The Chairman proposed that the recommendation as set out in the report be agreed. 
This was duly seconded. 

A debate ensued and in response to a number of comments raised, Officers provided 
the following information: 

 The action regarding remote meetings was complete as this related to the 
remote and hybrid meetings in the chamber, however Officers were working to 
action the Motion agreed by the Council to return meetings of the South Eastern 
Area Planning Committee to Burnham-on-Crouch. 

 The Council was looking to appoint a Climate Action Officer whose role would 
involve developing the detailed action plan arising from the Strategy. 

 The Constitution required Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee to have 
attended training.  It was noted that training had been offered to all Members 
and this was being progressed.  In response to further questions regarding 
training being mandatory the Programmes, Performance and Governance 
Manager advised that she was in contact on this with Licensing Committee 
Members. 

The Chairman put the recommendation set out in the report and this was duly agreed 
by assent. 

Page 11



 

RESOLVED that the Annual Governance Statement’s table and updates as set out in 
the report be noted. 

12. DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance providing an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for review and 
adoption.  The draft AGS was attached as Appendix A to the report. 

It was noted that the AGS followed the Council’s 2021 / 22 template, reflecting the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy best practice, reviewed the 
criteria for good governance and the activity that had taken place of the 2021 / 22 
financial year.  The Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager reported that 
the Council generally performed well against the criteria for good governance, and an 
action plan had been identified to build on this for 2022 / 23. 

The Chairman proposed that the recommendations as set out in the report be agreed. 
This proposal was duly seconded and agreed by assent. 

RESOLVED 

(i) that the Annual Governance Statement at Appendix A to the report be approved 
and appended to the statement of accounts;  

(ii) that the progress of the action plan be noted; 

(iii) that a quarterly report of Annual Governance actions is provided for 
Performance, Governance and Audit Committee review. 

13. HEADLINE RESULTS AND ACTION PLAN OF THE STAFF SURVEY

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance updating Members on the recent staff survey results and seeking 
feedback on the associated action plan put together by the Management Team.   

The report set out the key findings and action plan of the annual staff survey that had 
run from 17 November – 17 December 2021.  Positive highlights of the survey along 
with areas of concern were detailed in the report and noted by Members.  Following a 
review of the results and potential actions by the Extended Leadership Team it was 
noted that a live action plan was to be developed, against which progress would be 
monitored. 

The Chairman proposed that the recommendations as set out in the report be agreed 
and this was duly seconded. 

Members discussed the survey results and in response to comments and questions 
raised, Officers provided the following information: 

 Staff were actively encouraged to complete the staff survey, making it
mandatory was difficult.  It was confirmed that responses to the staff survey
were anonymous.  However, Officers were looking at additional ways to engage
with staff.

 It was suggested that the staff survey should become a Key Performance
Indicator.

Page 12



 

 In response to a question regarding the comments received relating to Member
culture and behaviour, Members were advised that the questions were not
directly related to this area as feedback was given in an open-ended box.
However, Officers agreed to provide Members with details of the percentages in
relation to this.

 Staff sickness levels were low at this present time.

Members were reminded that the full survey results were available via Fresh Service. 

The Chairman put the proposal to accept the recommendations and this was duly 
agreed by assent. 

RESOLVED 

(i) That staff survey results and associated action plan activities listed in section 
3.5 of the report be noted;  

(ii) That Members are assured the staff survey responses are being managed 
effectively.  

14. NOTICE OF MOTION - REFERRED BY STATUTORY ANNUAL COUNCIL

The Committee received a Motion (as set out below) from Councillor A S Fluker, which 
in accordance with Procedure Rule 4 had been referred to this Committee by the 
Council at its meeting on 12 May 2022. 

Motion: 
That with regards to public interest, customer service and satisfaction and performance 
management the Director of Service Delivery updates the next meeting of Council 
regarding the performance of Council in the following areas:  

1. Planning Applications - Communications with Customers and Interested Parties

2. Planning enforcement - Outstanding Cases.

Councillor Fluker presented his Motion to the Committee. 

The Director of Service Delivery, Customers, Community and Casework Manager and 
Specialist Services Manager then gave a presentation which provided an overview of 
customer satisfaction and performance management in respect of the issues raised.  It 
was confirmed that a copy of the presentation would be circulated to Members. 

Councillor Fluker then referred to his Motion and raised a number of points specifically 
in relation to: 

 digitisation, channel shift and the use of Dash (self-service software) for the
public to contact the Council in relation to planning matters.  He also referred to
directing Members to use Fresh Service.  Explaining that this would help to
remove some of the traffic from the system.

 the Council’s response times for all types of correspondence.

 the presentation received by Members and the need to also consider and report
on the scheme of delegation, planning Committees, Member call in, total
outsourcing and building control.  Councillor Fluker also

 the recruitment problems the Council was facing and how this had impacted
across services.

Page 13



 

 the need to ensure an objectively led timeline with a parallel costs matrix was
produced to properly track the rollout of the plan / strategy.

In relation to enforcement, the Director of Service Delivery confirmed that he would 
report back to the Council regarding communications and outstanding cases. 

Councillor Fluker hoped that when the Director of Service Delivery reported back to the 
Council, he would cover the points he had raised but particularly the costs and matrix.  
In light of this he then withdrew his motion. 

In response the Director of Service Delivery thanked Councillor Fluker for his 
comments and in response to a specific question regarding why recruitment had not 
been brought forward earlier he referenced the recent pandemic and how the Council 
was now operating in a different way due to things recovering.  He reported that staff 
had given 110% and he praised the efforts that had been put in.  Members were 
advised that the points raised had been noted and will ensure the relevant detail was 
provided when the next report was brought to the Council. 

provided the Committee with further information, highlighting some areas where he felt 
further improvements could be made. 

RECOMMENDED that the Council notes the position as now advised by Councillor A S 
Fluker to withdraw his Motion and takes no further action on this Motion. 

15. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO OUTSIDE BODIES

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
Governance seeking nominations to Outside Bodies for the municipal year to May 
2023. 

Councillor A S Fluker proposed that the current representatives on Outside Bodies as 
listed in the report remained unchanged for 2022 / 23.  This was duly seconded and 
agreed by assent. 

RESOLVED that the Committee appoints the follow representatives to the bodies 
detailed below, for the ensuing municipal year. 

Outside Body 2022 / 23 Representative 

Maldon Citizens Advice Bureau Liaison 
Committee  

Councillors J V Keyes, J L Fleming and 
E L Stephens  

Maldon District Museum Liaison 
Committee  

Councillors E L Stephens and Mrs J C 
Stilts  

Parish Clerks’ Forum Chairman of the PGA Committee  
Substitute: Vice-Chairman of the 
Performance, Governance and Audit 
Committee  

There being no other items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 10.02 pm. 

W STAMP, CC 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 14



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
21 JULY 2022 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 To present for consideration, comment, and approval by the Committee the following 1.1

reports issued by BDO LLP, the Council’s internal audit service provider 

 Internal Audit Progress Report – July 2022 at  6a; 

 Follow-up of Recommendations Report – July 2022 - 6b; 

 Workforce Management – May 2022 – 6c; 

 Customer Relationship Management (CRM) – March 2022 – 6d; 

 Internal Audit Annual Report and Annual Statement of Assurance – 
2021/2022 – 6e; 

 Risk Maturity – June 2022 – 6f; 

 Corporate Governance – July 2022 – 6g. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That the Committee considers, comments, and approves the following: 
 

(i) Internal Audit Progress Report – July 2022 at  6a; 

(ii) Follow-up of Recommendations Report – July 2022 - 6b; 

(iii) Workforce Management – May 2022 – 6c; 

(iv) Customer Relationship Management (CRM) – March 2022 – 6d; 

(v) Internal Audit Annual Report and Annual Statement of Assurance – 
2021/2022 – 6e; 

(vi) Risk Maturity – June 2022 – 6f; 

(vii) Corporate Governance – July 2022 – 6g. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 BDO LLP are the Council’s contracted Internal Audit Service provider.  The Partner, 3.1

Mr. Greg Rubins, fulfils an equivalent role to that of Head of Internal Audit. 
 

 The Internal Audit Service is there to provide assurance to the Director of Resources, 3.2
Management and Members of the adequacy of internal controls and checks in the 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



organisation and to highlight any risks that the Council may be exposed to in its 
overall and day to day operations. 
 

 As such, Internal Audit is independent of Management and operates, performs to and 3.3
is measured against The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) issued 
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  

 
 The reports attached from BDO at 6a to 6g will be presented to the Committee and 3.4

discussed by Mr Greg Rubins or his representative on his behalf. 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 This report together with the BDO reports attached from 6a-6g allows the Committee 4.1

to fulfil its remit of overseeing governance. 

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
5.1 Internal Audit cuts across the delivery of all the Strategic Themes of the Council. 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – any impact on customers will be highlighted with the 

reports in the appendices. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – any impact on equalities will be highlighted with the 
reports in the appendices if it is within the scope of the audit work carried out. 

(iii) Impact on Risk – Any risks identified as a result of the findings of the internal 
audit work are highlighted with the individual reports and summarised in the 
Progress Update and Follow Up of recommendations reports. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – Same comment applies here as for 
Impact on Risk above. 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – Same comment applies here as for Impact 
on Risk above. 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – Same comment applies here as for Impact on 
Risk above. 

 
 
Background papers: None. 
 
Enquiries to: Chris Leslie, Director of Resources, Maldon District Council  

Greg Rubins (BDO LLP) 
Christopher André (BDO LLP) 

Page 16



INTERNAL AUDIT 
PROGRESS REPORT 

Maldon District Council 

July 2022 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6a



INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

CONTENTS 

SUMMARY OF WORK ............................................................................................ 19

REVIEW OF 2021/2022 WORK ................................................................................. 20

REVIEW OF 2022/2023 WORK ................................................................................. 21

SECTOR UPDATE ................................................................................................ 22

APPENDIX I: DEFINITIONS ...................................................................................... 24

Page 18



 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

SUMMARY OF WORK 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

This report is intended to inform the Performance, Governance & 
Audit Committee of progress made against the 2021/22 and 2022/23 
internal audit plans. It summarises the work we have done, together 
with our assessment of the systems reviewed and the 
recommendations we have raised. Our work complies with Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. As part of our audit approach, we 
have agreed terms of reference for each piece of work with the risk 
owner, identifying the headline and sub-risks, which have been 
covered as part of the assignment. This approach is designed to 
enable us to give assurance on the risk management and internal 
control processes in place to mitigate the risks identified.  

INTERNAL AUDIT METHODOLOGY 

Our methodology is based on four assurance levels in respect of our 
overall conclusion as to the design and operational effectiveness of 
controls within the system reviewed.  The assurance levels are set out 
in Appendix 1 of this report and are based on us giving either 
"substantial", "moderate", "limited" or "no".  The four assurance levels 
are designed to ensure that the opinion given does not gravitate to a 
"satisfactory" or middle band grading. Under any system we are 
required to make a judgement when making our overall assessment.  

2021/2022 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

Four audits have been completed and represent the last of the 2021/22 audit plan. We are pleased to present the 
following reports to this Performance, Governance & Audit Committee:  

• Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

• Workforce Planning

2022/2023 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

Two audits have been completed from the 2022/23 audit plan and we are pleased to present the following reports to 
this Performance, Governance & Audit Committee:  

• Corporate Governance

• Risk Maturity

AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 

• As part of the scoping for Communications and Stakeholder Management, due to Officer availability and the
current risk profile it was agreed that this audit would be dropped from the plan and, in its place Contract
Management, an area deemed to be of high risk by the Directors, would replace it and begin in the new financial
year.

• Flood Management was due to be completed in Q1 of the 2022/23. However, given developments at the Council
it was agreed to postpone this until later in the year in order to complete a more urgent review of Payment
Controls resulting in additional days in this years’ plan. The additional days will partly be covered by the
postponement of the Capital and Commercial Project Management audit which will instead take place in Q1 as
part of the 23/24 plan. Given that a Commercialisation audit is due to be finalised for the November PGA, this
area is being covered to some extent already this year.

Page 19



 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

REVIEW OF JULY 2022 

AUDIT AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

PLANNING FIELD
WORK 

REPORTING DESIGN EFFECTIVENESS 

Covid Recovery Plan 
November 

2021 
✓ ✓ ✓ 

Partnerships 
November 

2021 
✓ ✓ ✓ 

Management of 
Property 

February 
2022 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Policy Review 
February 

2022 
✓ ✓ ✓ 

Main Financial Systems 
February 

2022 
✓ ✓ ✓ 

IT Strategy & 
Transformation 

February 
2022 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Strategic Performance- 
Community 

February 
2022 

✓ ✓ ✓ 

Customer Relationship 
Management 

June 2022 ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Communications & 
Stakeholder 
Management (removed 
from 21/22 plan) 

June 2022 

Workforce Management June 2022 ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Contract Management 
(brought in to replace 
Communications)  

November 
2022 

✓ ✓ 

Commercialisation 
November 

2022 
✓ ✓ 

Page 20



 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

REVIEW OF JULY 2022 

AUDIT AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

PLANNING FIELD
WORK 

REPORTING DESIGN EFFECTIVENESS 

Risk Maturity 
Assessment 

July 2022 ✓ ✓ ✓ N/A - Advisory 

Corporate 
Governance 

July 2022 ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Flood Management 
November 

2022 
✓ 

Safeguarding 
November 

2022 
✓ ✓ 

Payment Controls 
Review (added to 
22/23 plan) 

November 
2022 

✓ ✓ 

Local Development 
Plan 

November 
2022 

Budgets and 
Performance 
Management 

November 
2022 

Capital and 
Commercial 
Project 
Management 
(moved to 23/24) 

Main Financial 
Systems 

November 
2022 

Climate Change 
and Sustainability 

March 2022 

Strategic 
Performance 
(Place) 

March 2022 

Workforce 
Management 

March 2022 

Community Safety June 2022 

Page 21



 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

SECTOR UPDATE 

Our quarterly Local Government briefing summarises recent publication and emerging issues relevant to Local 
Authorities that may be of interest to your organisation. It is intended to provide a snapshot of current issues for 
senior managers, directors and members. 

Cost of living squeeze hits public sector 

Authorities face increased costs without any guarantee of higher income, putting pressure on budgets for next year. 

Everyone is paying a high price for the cost-of-living crisis, including the public sector. 

In addition to higher energy bills and wider inflation, local authorities face problems finding contractors and could 
lose income from fees and charges. 

“It is having a major impact on budgets,” said Lynton Green, deputy chief executive at Warrington Borough Council 
and president of the UK’s Society of Municipal Treasurers. Government support helped to protect UK councils during 
the first year of the pandemic, with some paying significant sums into reserves. 

But along with consumers, they now face inflation exceeding 7% during the next few months. Contractors, including 
providers of adult social care, are keen to pass on costs, such as April’s 1.25 percentage point rise in national 
insurance. 

“They see local authorities as having extra money,” said Green. Meanwhile, supply chain problems, partly caused by 
Brexit, mean that some contractors will only guarantee prices for short periods. “Everything has to be signed and 
sealed in two weeks,” he added.  “They will not hold prices any longer.” 

Ian Miller, chief executive of Wyre Forest District Council in Worcestershire, said bills for construction schemes are 
exceeding initial estimates: “We have to reshape projects in line with available funding.” Along with other district 
councils, Wyre Forest is effectively limited to raising council tax in 2022-23 by a maximum of 1.99%. “It will definitely 
be sub-inflation,” said Miller. Upper- and single-tier authorities can levy an extra 1% for social care. 

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/analysis/2022/03/cost-living-squeeze-hits-public-sector 

Funding reforms key to ‘levelling up’ 

The government’s ‘levelling up’ agenda is reliant on detail on funding reforms omitted from last month’s white paper, 
according to the Institute for Fiscal Studies.  

Although February’s ‘levelling up' white paper recognised the importance of public services, it failed to include any 
proposals on how the government planned to reform funding, research published by the IFS said. 

It added that the paper focused on narrowing geographic gaps in funding but lacked any details on how money was 
reaching the most deprived areas, and the effect it was having. 

The report said: “Overall there is little said [in the paper] about one of the biggest direct levers the government has 
to effect levelling up: changes to how funding is allocated between places. 

“This is an important omission because recent years have seen increasingly robust evidence emerge that the amount 
of funding a range of public services receive matters for the outcomes they deliver.” 

Since 2010 local authorities funding has acted against ‘levelling up’, as authority spending fell by around twice as 
much per person (31%) in the most deprived tenth of councils, compared to the wealthiest (16%), the report added. 

Page 22

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/analysis/2022/03/cost-living-squeeze-hits-public-sector


 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

This was a result of the government failing to consider how much each authority relied on grants to fund services, 
with more deprived areas unable to raise additional revenue through council tax, the IFS said.   

The institute said that the 2022-23 local government settlement indicated a change, as councils in more deprived 
areas are set to receive larger funding boosts than authorities in wealthier areas. 

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/03/funding-reforms-key-levelling 

Vast majority’ of public bodies sign-up for local audit procurement 

Almost all eligible public bodies in England have registered for the national auditor procurement scheme run by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments from 2023, the oversight body has announced 

The body announced yesterday that 470 of the 475 qualifying bodies signed up to the scheme for the five-year 
accounting period from 2023-24 to 2027-28.   

This was an increase of one percentage point over the previous accounting period, which runs until the end of 2023-
24, PSAA added. 

Steve Freer, PSAA chair, said: “We are very pleased that the vast majority of eligible local bodies have once again 
decided to put their faith in PSAA’s scheme. 

“In our view it makes particular sense for the sector to work together in a co-ordinated, collaborative scheme at a 
time when the local audit market is facing unprecedented challenges and risks affecting the supply of audit services 
and the delivery of timely audit opinions.” 

Stephen Sheen, managing director at local government adviser Ichabod’s Industries, told PF that it was no surprise 
that more public bodies signed up for the procurement period. 

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/03/vast-majority-public-bodies-sign-local-audit-procurement 

Energy Company part-owned by Warrington Borough Council collapses 

An energy company in which Warrington Borough Council invested £52m has gone bust. 

Glasgow-based Together Energy today (Tuesday) joined the increasing number of small energy firms which have closed 
down due to an increase in wholesale gas prices. 

The company announced the decision to cease trading with immediate effect on its website this afternoon. 

It said: “Despite press reports, we did buy enough gas and electricity for your needs, but the sustained increase in 
wholesale prices and the securities required to continue to forward purchase the energy, have meant that it is 
untenable for us to continue.” 

The firm thanked customers for supporting its “commitment to providing employment and education opportunities to 
young people from disadvantaged areas”. 

In a statement, Warrington Borough Council said: "Our vision was to be part of a company that tackles the climate 
emergency by delivering 100% green energy to customers, contributes to reducing fuel poverty and provides local jobs 
in Warrington – particularly for those out of work or without formal qualifications - but the current market conditions 
are sadly not sustainable. 

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/01/energy-company-part-owned-warrington-borough-council-
collapses 

Page 23

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/03/funding-reforms-key-levelling
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/03/vast-majority-public-bodies-sign-local-audit-procurement
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/01/energy-company-part-owned-warrington-borough-council-collapses
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2022/01/energy-company-part-owned-warrington-borough-council-collapses


 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

APPENDIX I - DEFINITIONS 

OPINION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE DESIGN OPINION 

FINDINGS FROM 
REVIEW 

EFFECTIVENESS 
OPINION 

FINDINGS FROM 
REVIEW 

Substantial Appropriate procedures 
and controls in place to 
mitigate the key risks.  

There is a sound system 
of internal control 
designed to achieve 
system objectives. 

No, or only minor, 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

The controls that are in 
place are being 
consistently applied. 

Moderate In the main, there are 
appropriate procedures 
and controls in place 
to mitigate the key risks 
reviewed albeit with 
some that are not fully 
effective.  

Generally, a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives with some 
exceptions. 

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

Evidence of non-
compliance with some 
controls that may put 
some of the system 
objectives at risk.   

Limited A number of significant 
gaps identified in the 
procedures and controls 
in key areas. Where 
practical, efforts should 
be made to address in-
year. 

System of internal 
controls is weakened 
with system objectives 
at risk of not being 
achieved. 

A number of reoccurring 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where 
practical, efforts should 
be made to address in-
year. 

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the 
system objectives at 
risk. 

No For all risk areas there 
are significant gaps in 
the procedures and 
controls. Failure to 
address in-year affects 
the quality of the 
organisation’s overall 
internal control 
framework. 

Poor system of internal 
control. 

Due to absence of 
effective controls and 
procedures, no reliance 
can be placed on their 
operation. Failure to 
address in-year affects 
the quality of the 
organisation’s overall 
internal control 
framework. 

Non-compliance and/or 
compliance with 
inadequate controls. 

Page 24



` 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GREG RUBINS 

greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general terms 
and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied upon to 
cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon the 
information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. Please 
contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular 
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or assume 
any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by 
anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision based on 
it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under 
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent 
member firms. A list of members’ names is open to inspection at our registered office, 
55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by the 
Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, 
is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent member 
firms.  

© 2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

www.bdo.co.uk 

Page 25

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 
OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT 

Maldon District Council 

July 2022 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6b



INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

CONTENTS 

SUMMARY…………………………………… 29

RECOMMENDATIONS: COMPLETE … 31

RECOMMENDATIONS: OVERDUE …… 33

Page 28



 INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

SUMMARY 

2019/20 Total 
Recs 

H M L To 
follow 

up 

Complete Overdue Not Due 

H M H M H M 

Flood Risk Management 4 - 4 - 4 - - - 4 - - 

Total 4 - 4 - 4 - - - 4 - - 

2020/21 Total 
Recs 

H M L To 
follow 

up 

Complete Overdue Not Due 

H M H M H M 

Safeguarding 5 1 3 1 4 1 1 - 2 - - 

CIPFA FM Preparedness 1 - - 1 - - - - - - - 

Workforce Management - - - - - - - - - - - 

Information Management 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - - - - 

KFS - Payroll 2 - - 2 - - - - - - - 

Affordable Housing 3 1 2 - 3 - 2 1 - - - 

Knowledge Management 3 - 3 - 3 - 2 - 1 - - 

Total 16 2 10 4 12 1 7 1 3 - - 

2021/22 Total 
Recs 

H M L To 
follow 

up 

Complete Overdue Not Due 

H M H M H M 

Partnerships 4 - 3 1 3 - 3 - - - - 

Covid Response Plans 1 - - 1 - - - - - - - 

Management of Property 4 1 3 - 4 - 1 - 1 1 1 

Main Financial Systems 4 - - 4 - - - - - - - 

Policy Review 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - - - - 

Strategic Performance – 
Community  

1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - - - - 

IT Strategy & 
Transformation 

2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - - - - 

Total 17 1 10 6 11 - 8 - 1 1 1 

Page 29



 INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

SUMMARY 

2019/20 

There remain four recommendations left to complete from 2019/20 relating to Flood Risk Management. As part of 
the 2022/23 audit plan, we are due to undertake a more detailed follow up in a Flood Risk Management audit and 
will therefore report on the progress of these recommendations as part of this. 

2020/21 

2 high and 10 medium recommendations were raised in 2020/21. The current position of these recommendations are 
as follows: 

 Knowledge Management – There remains one medium priority recommendation which has a revised
implementation date of December 2022. This will be followed up after this date and reported to the March 2023
PGA.

 Affordable Housing – One recommendation has been completed since it was last reported on. However, one high
recommendation remains overdue. The finding was broken down into three recommendations, one of which has
been implemented and is reported as complete, with the remaining two still overdue.

 Safeguarding – Two recommendations are overdue. However, these will be followed up in more detail as part of
the 22/23 Safeguarding audit currently underway and progress on these final two recommendations will be
reported as part of this.

2021/2022 

1 high and 10 medium recommendations have been raised in 2021/22. The current position of these 
recommendations are as follows: 

 Partnerships: All recommendations have
now been completed.

 Management of Property: One 
recommendation has already been 
completed and two are not yet due. The
final recommendation was due in April but
has a revised implementation date and is
reported as overdue.

 Policy Review: One recommendation
became due in April and has been
implemented and reported as complete.

 Strategic Performance - Community: One
recommendation became due in April and is
reported as complete below.

 IT Strategy and Transformation: One
recommendation became due in March and
has been implemented and reported as
complete.

REQUIRED AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION: 

We ask the Audit Committee to note the progress against 
the recommendations. 

Total Cumulative implementation 20/21 and 21/22 

9%

69%

22%

Not Yet Due

Complete

Overdue

Page 30



INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

RECOMMENDATIONS: COMPLETE 

AUDIT ACTIONS AGREED PRIORITY 
LEVEL 

MANAGER 
RESPONSIBLE 

DUE DATE CURRENT PROGRESS 

2021/22 

Partnerships The Council should 
ensure the three 
thematic strategies are 
updated to reflect the 
new objectives 
identified in the latest 
Corporate Plan and that 
partnerships are 
appropriately mapped 
out 

Medium Georgina 
Button 

30 
November 

2021 

7 February 
2022 

All strategies are up to date 
and published on 
maldon.gov.uk. 

Audit Comment: Updated 
strategies seen on Maldon 
website 

Partnerships The Council should 
ensure that sufficient 
documentation is 
maintained for the 
formal partners. This 
should include: 

 Terms of Reference 

 Minutes from meetings 

 Action Logs 

 Updates from Council 
representatives 

Medium Cheryl 
Hughes 

31 May 
2022 

Reminders to Members with 
a FreshService process for 
uploading papers has been 
included in the member 
appointment papers. 

Audit Comment: Report to 
Statutory Annual Council on 
12 May provides the link to 
FreshService and notes the 
recommendation made in 
the report. 

IT Strategy and 
Transformation 

1.1 Management 
should review and update 
the current ICT strategy 
to document the missing 
elements, including the 
Council’s IT expectations 
and objectives, how 
these link to corporate 
strategic objectives and 
policies and procedures 
underpinning the 
strategy. 

1.2 Management 
should identify and 
update or develop the 
associated policies, 
procedures (e.g. IT 
procurement, disposal, 
retention, backup) and 
the control framework in 
supporting the delivery 
of the strategy and to 
support the objectives of 
the strategy. 

Medium Grant Hulley 31 March 
2022 

Strategy updated to include 
pictorial roadmap as well as 
added narrative relating to 
the links to further policies 
and procedures held by the 
Council. 

Audit Comment: Updated 
Strategy reviewed with 
roadmap included. 

Policy Review 1.3 The Council 
should undertake a 
review of their policies to 
ensure: 
• Finalised policies 
clearly state on the 
policy they are final 
• The owner of the policy
is recorded as a job title 
and they are clearly 

Medium Paul Dodson 30 April 
2022 

Raised and discussed at ELT 
to ensure consistency in how 
Policies are maintained. 
Email then circulated to ELT 
to remind leads of 
expectations when 
drafting/developing a 
policy. 

Page 31



 INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

recorded as the 
owner 
• The frequency of the
reviews are recorded 
• A brief summary of the
changes made to the 
previous policy should be 
included. 
The Council should also 
maintain a Policy 
Framework document 
which contains all the 
policies 
providing details as to 
who is responsible and 
the review due date. 

Audit Comment: Email 
reminder seen which 
includes recommendations 
raised as part of the audit 
as well as a link to a policy 
library  to ensure a central 
repository of policies. 

Strategic 
Performance - 
Community 

1. 1.1 Action plans should
be developed when KPIs
fall behind target.

1.2 The Council should
ensure that action plans
for KPIs that have fallen
behind target are
reported as part of the
quarterly performance
reports to ensure the
Performance,
Governance and Audit
Committee have
sufficient oversight of
performance
management.

Medium Joshua 
Fulcher 

30 April 
2022 

We have recently refreshed 
our KPIs and to which the 
KPI that had fallen behind 
target has been removed (in 
agreement with members) 
given that the delivery and 
progression of the KPI now 
sits outside of MDC’s reach. 

However, going forward, 
when a KPI does fall behind 
target, an action plan will 
be developed and reported 
as of part of the quarterly 
performance reports 

Audit Comment: Rather 
than wait until a KPI falls 
behind target in order to 
close, this is being moved to 
complete now. Further 
Strategic Performance 
reviews are being 
completed over the 
following two years, 
focusing on Place and 
Prosperity respectively. 
Review of KPIs will be 
completed as part of these 
audits.  

Page 32



 INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: OVERDUE 

These recommendations have been marked as overdue as they have previously revised their implementation date. 
Therefore, they have now missed at least two implementation dates. 

AUDIT ACTIONS AGREED PRIORITY 
LEVEL 

MANAGER 
RESPONSIBLE 

DUE DATE CURRENT PROGRESS 

2020/21 

Affordable 
Housing 

1.1 Ongoing reporting 
and monitoring of 
delivery against 
action plan and the 
affordable housing 
targets should be 
undertaken.  

1.2 The Housing Strategy 
extension should be 
finalised as soon as 
possible, and an 
accompanying action 
plan included which 
links with the actions 
in the Housing 
Service Business 
Plan.  

High Damien 
Ghela 

Sept 21 

17 Dec 21 

30 April 
2022 

30 Sep 
2022 

Dec 21 

30 April 
2022 

31 July 
2022 

1.1 Ongoing monitoring and 
reporting of Affordable Housing 
Delivery is taking place - 
carried out by John Swords. 
This has yet to be set up as a 
KPI 

1.2 This work was delayed by 
competing priorities and should 
be completed in Q2. Initial 
scoping discussions have taken 
place. Based on initial 
discussions it is felt the existing 
format of the Housing Strategy 
along with some of the goals 
are still relevant, subject to an 
update of some of the 
underlying data being 
updated/refreshed 

2021/22 

Management of 
Property 

The Council should 
establish an Asset 
Strategy to enable them 
to succinctly define the 
benefits of their assets 
and introduce processes 
that allow them to 
identify potential 
users/uses of such assets, 
expectations from 
keeping them, costs of 
maintaining etc. 

As part of A) above, the 
Council should review the 
assets it holds to identify 
unused or underutilised 
resources with a view to 
redeploying or disposing. 
Regular (potentially 
annual) meetings should 
be undertaken 
specifically to review the 
assets and ensure these 
are being efficiently 
utilised in line with the 
strategy. These meetings 

Medium Farley 
Norman 

Steven 
Butcher 

Frank Britt 

30 April 
2022 

30 
September 

2022 

Updated delivery time as just 
started commitment with 
fellow officers 

Page 33



 INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT | MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

should be minuted and 
hold an action plan. 

Page 34



` 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GREG RUBINS 

greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general terms 
and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied upon to cover 
specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon the information 
contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. Please contact BDO LLP to 
discuss these matters in the context of your particular circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, 
employees and agents do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any loss 
arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this 
publication or for any decision based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number 
OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, 
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of 
members’ names is open to inspection at our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London 
W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to 
conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, 
is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

© June 2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

www.bdo.co.uk 

Page 35

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 
MAY 2022 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE 

Design Operational Effectiveness 

Substantial Substantial 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6c



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................. 39 

DETAILED FINDINGS .................................................................... 41 

STAFF INTERVIEWED ................................................................... 43 

APPENDIX I – BENCHMARKING RESULTS AND UPDATED CONTENT/LAYOUT ..... 44 

APPENDIX II - DEFINITIONS ........................................................... 50 

APPENDIX III – TERMS OF REFERENCE ............................................... 51 

DISTRIBUTION 

Name Job Title 

Chris Leslie Director of Resources 

Annette Cardy Resources Specialist Services Manager 

Helen Tarling HR Specialist 

REPORT STATUS LIST 

Auditors: Elroy Rauto 

Dates work performed: 28 February - 07 April 2022 

Draft report issued: 4 May 2022 

Final report issued: 9 May 2022 

Page 38



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design Substantial 
There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 

system objectives. 

Effectiveness Substantial  The controls that are in place are being consistently applied. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

High 0 

Medium 0 

Low 1 

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 1 

BACKGROUND: 

During the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, Maldon District Council developed a Workforce 
Strategy in order to identify how the Council will meet current and future people needs to 
ensure there is a highly skilled workforce in place to deliver the Council’s services. Our last 
audit of the Council’s Workforce Strategy was carried out in November 2020 where we 
reviewed the Council’s Strategic Plan for People and Workforce Development, in addition to 
the supporting action plan to facilitate its implementation. 

The last audit also reviewed the results of the staff survey carried out in November 2019 which 
raised concerns around resource, uncertainty and interaction with management. Since the 
last audit, the Covid-19 pandemic has continued to have an impact on the Council’s way of 
working and overall delivery of services. HR have recognised that the Council’s 2019 Workforce 
Strategy was developed before the pandemic and needs to be revised in line with the new 
ways of working brought about by the measures required for covid risk management. To 
support the implementation of the strategy, the Council have also put in place a Future Ways 
of Working and Reset & Recovery Working Group in order to help develop initiatives to ensure 
services could continue to be delivered, which is also supported by the rollout of a Hybrid 
Working Policy. 

The Council have identified that 61% of its roles can be carried out using a hybrid approach, 
with 20% of roles requiring on site presence and 19% being rota based. Examples of on-site 
roles include Parks Officers and Community Engagement Officers. Currently, the Council are 
going through a trial period to determine which services are operating effectively from hybrid 
working and which areas require further improvement. This trial is expected to finish in June 
2022, with current areas of focus being mileage claims and desk booking for example. The 
Council have also carried out another staff survey during 2021/22 to gauge views around new 
ways of working following the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Page 39



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

PURPOSE OF THE REVIEW: 

To provide assurance on the extent of implementation of the workforce transformation 
strategy, and that planning and required resources are in place to enable delivery of the 
strategy. We also reviewed the impact of CV-19 on its aims and progress. 

GOOD PRACTICE: 

During our audit, we identified the following areas of good practice: 

• The Council is in the process of developing a revised workforce transformation
strategy and it is part of the current business plan to review and implement it

• The Council's Hybrid Procedure clearly sets out the Council's Hybrid Working Model
and compares the various ways of working. It also covers roles and responsibilities as
well as other key elements such as logistics and data protection

• All the roles in the Council’s establishment for each directorate are covered in the
“Establishment aligned to future ways of working” spreadsheet, and are classified into
Hybrid Workers, On-site Workers and Rota Workers

• The Council has received support from the LGA for strategic workforce planning and
a timeline has been developed for a permanent change to hybrid working supported
by a Hybrid Working Policy and Procedure which includes aspects on monitoring of
costs and delivery of key services

• The “Future Ways of Working” Group and the “Covid-19 Reset and Recovery Working”
Group regularly review and monitor the current workforce and implementation of the
Workforce Transformation Strategy

• Issues identified from the December 2021 Staff survey have resulted in the
development of an action plan which is monitored and reviewed.

KEY FINDINGS: 

• The draft Workforce Transformation Strategy does not have dedicated themes for

Diversity and Inclusion or Staff Empowerment. This is highly relevant to the Council
as “having policies that support diversity and good people management” is a stated
aim of People planning along with being an employer of choice and improving
employee engagement. We also found that there was scope for improving the layout
of the strategy document.

ADDED VALUE 

Through benchmarking against other Council’s workforce strategies, we have made 
recommendations to improve the layout and comprehensiveness of the Council’s draft 
workforce transformation strategy which is included at Appendix I. 

CONCLUSION: 

Based on our review of the Council’s draft Workforce Transformation Strategy, hybrid working 
procedure and associate minutes, terms of references and action plans, we conclude that the 
Council is making good progress with the implementation of the Strategy, and that planning 
and required resources are in place to enable delivery of the strategy. We have therefore given 
substantial assurance on both design and operational of the controls in place. However, 
through benchmarking against other Council strategies, we identified that there is potential 
scope to improve the layout of the strategy whilst ensuring all relevant areas are covered.  

Page 40



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS 

RISK:  THE COUNCIL'S WORKFORCE TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY HAS NOT BEEN UPDATED TO 
REFLECT THE IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON WAYS OF WORKING WITH REFERENCE TO 
THE NEW HYBRID PROCEDURES. 

Ref Significance Finding 

1 Low The Council has developed a Workforce Strategy in order to reflect 

the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on ways of working and it 

includes areas such as the corporate plan, people strategy, 

corporate themes and pledges, and priority themes and actions. 

We undertook some benchmarking in order to assess the content and 

layout of the Council’s strategy against similar strategies at other 

Councils.  Whilst good progress has been made on drafting the new 

Strategy, our analysis found that there is scope to add in further 

detail around Staff Empowerment, and Diversity and Inclusion with 

there currently being no dedicated themes. This is highly relevant 

to the Council as “having policies that support diversity and good 

people management” is a stated aim of People planning along with 

being an employer of choice and improving employee engagement. 

Other Council Strategies were also found to include this as noted 

below: 

Council Report Does it include a theme on 
diversity? 

Maldon District Council No 

Wiltshire Council Workforce 
Strategy 

Yes 

Edinburgh Council Workforce Plan No 

Haringey Workforce Strategy Yes 

Bristol Workforce Strategy Yes 

We also found that there was scope for improving the layout of the 

strategy document to make it more understandable. Based upon our 

analysis, we have created a revised layout for the Council’s 

Workforce Strategy document which is illustrated in Appendix I 

below. The layout incorporates most sections of the existing draft 

and adds a few minor sections to make it comprehensive.  

The Council risks its revised Workforce Strategy not being fully 

comprehensive and potentially less effective due to the absence of 

certain information. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Council should review the updated layout as well as the potential to include more detail 

Page 41



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

around the themes for Staff Empowerment and Diversity and Inclusion and look to incorporate 
these into the draft strategy currently being developed.  

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: 

Agreed, the strategy is being developed with reference to the template provided below, the 
new ways of working and the above points. This will be developed over the year to cover the 
HR vision for the next 5 years. 

Responsible Officer: Jane Corsham 

Implementation Date: 31.3.23 

Page 42



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

STAFF INTERVIEWED 

BDO LLP APPRECIATES THE TIME PROVIDED BY ALL THE INDIVIDUALS INVOLVED IN THIS REVIEW 
AND WOULD LIKE TO THANK THEM FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE AND COOPERATION. 

Name Job Title 

Helen Tarling HR Specialist 

Page 43



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX I – BENCHMARKING RESULTS AND UPDATED CONTENT/LAYOUT 

We reviewed the draft Workforce Strategy from the Council and assessed it against the 

Strategies in place at several other Councils in the UK. Based upon our analysis, we have created 

a revised layout for the Strategy document which is illustrated in the graphics below. Our layout 

incorporates most sections of the existing draft and adds a few minor sections to make it 

comprehensive. 

In Figure 1 below, the sections from the existing strategy on the corporate plan, Council Vision 

and Goals, and corporate outcome pledges have been encapsulated within a section titled the 

“Strategic context”. We recommend that the Council’s values could be mentioned in this 

section as well. 

Figure 1 

In Figure 2 below, the sections from the existing strategy on the Workforce Strategy, aims, 

challenges and organisational culture have been encapsulated within a section titled the 

“People plan context”. 

Figure 2 

In figure 3 below, we have suggested the addition of a dedicated section below for a detailed 

analysis of the Council’s workforce profile. This is because a detailed understanding of the 

employee profile helps in identifying areas that need the most effort in workforce planning. 

Nine categories have been identified for analysis and informatics graphics could be used to 

communicate the results more effectively. 

1. Strategic Context

1.1 
Corporate 

Plan

1.2 Council 
Vision

1.3 Council 
Values

1.4 Council 
Goals

1.5 
Corporate 
Outcome 
Pledges

2. People Plan Context

2.1 

People Strategy

2.2 

Aims

2.3

Challenges

2.4 
Organisational 

Culture

Page 44



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Figure 3 

Similarly, in figure 4 below, we have also suggested a dedicated section below for the Staff 

survey result as this analysis can help in identifying areas in workforce planning that need to 

be prioritised. 

Figure 4 

We have suggested through figure 5 below a streamlined structure that is meant to provide an 

“at a glance” overview of the new Workforce Strategy. The contents of the graphic below 

should be spread over only a single page. 

3. Current Workforce Profile Analysis

3.1 Full time workers

3.4 Salary Bands

3.7 Age

3.2 Flexible Workers

3.5 Ethnicity

3.8 Sexual 
Orientation

3.3 Gender

3.6 Disability

3.9 Trends for each of 
the categories listed

4. Results of Staff Survey

4.1 Overview of Results

4.1.1 

SPG Results

4.1.2 

Resources Results

4.1.3 

Service Delivery 
Results

Page 45



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Figure 5 

In figure 5 and figure 6, we have included two additional priority themes which are “an 

empowered organisation” and “an inclusive organisation” to the existing four themes, thus 

adding up to six themes in total. We have suggested including “an empowered organisation” as 

a standalone theme because by creating a common purpose and a positive environment 

employees become confident and enabled to perform at a high level every day. This ties in well 

with the theme “an inclusive organisation” because it encourages colleagues to feel confident 

about being themselves at work. 

5. Improvement Plan at a glance

5.1 Corporate Vision

5.2 Corporate Values

5.3 Workforce Vision

5.4 Outcomes and Benefits

5..4.1 For Employees 5.4.2 For Leaders 5.4.3 For the Council

5.5 Priority Themes and Actions

5.5.1 

A high performing 
organisation

5.5.4

An employer of choice

5.5.2 

An empowered 
organisation

5.5.5

A healthy organisation

5.5.3 

A learning organisation

5.5.6

An inclusive 
organisation

Page 46



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Figure 6 

We also recommend in figure 7 below, segregating the actions planned in the existing Workforce 

Strategy by each theme and including additional actions to support the two new themes that 

we have suggested above. 

Figure 7 

6. Workforce priority themes in detail

6.1 A high performing organisation

6.2 An empowered organisation

6.3 A learning organisation

6.4 An employer of choice

6.5 A healthy organisation

6.6 An inclusive organisation

6.X Priority theme structure

Introduction/Context

Outcomes What will improve Measures of success

Action

• Action 1

• Action 2

• Action 3

•

•

Outcomes for 
success

Responsible 
person

Timeframe

Page 47



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Finally, in the figure 8 below, we have provided an example of a completed structure 

recommended in figure 7 above. We have done this for the “inclusive organisation” priority 

theme since we have recommended it as an addition to the existing themes. 

6.6 Inclusive Organisation 

Establishing an inclusive Council where our workforce reflects the diverse town that we 
serve and the needs of all its citizens, and where colleagues feel confident about being 
their authentic selves at work. 

Outcomes we will 
attain 

• Attract and retain a workforce which reflects our diverse town

• Increased diversity at all levels of the Council

• Data collection on D&I which we use to guide efforts

• Colleagues feedback on inclusion, respect, listening and
support

What we will 
improve 

• We will listen to and learn from colleague feedback

• We go beyond legislation to support D&I

• We support colleagues to influence positive change

• We will promote learning and networking to support cultural
change

How we measure 
success 

• Comprehensive understanding of our workforce profile

• Enhanced diversity reflected across our workforce

• Positive outcomes from colleagues about their experiences

Actions Outcomes Responsible person Timeframe 

Participate in 
Equality Framework 
for Local 
Government 

Improve our equality  

and inclusion practice 

Participate in 
Stonewall Index 

Improved index placing 
year on year 

Delivering a Diversity 
and Inclusion 
Strategy and Plan 

More employees 
experience fair work 

Working with D&I 
colleague networks 
to design training 
programmes 

Increased awareness of 
the social model of 
disability 

Extend pay gap 
reporting to include 
LGBTQ+ employees 

Annual pay gap report 

includes all under-
represented groups 

Provide supported 
internships for young 
disabled people. 

Increase number of 
participants to X 

Page 48



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

Re-launch staff led 
D&I focus groups 

Increase awareness and 
membership of staff led 
groups 

Review learning and 
development 
programmes to 
ensure there is 
explicit  

mainstreaming of 
equality and 
inclusion 

Staff have completed  

mandatory equality and 
diversity training 

Figure 8 

Page 49



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX II – DEFINITIONS 

LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

DESIGN OF INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK OPERATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

DESIGN 
OPINION 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

EFFECTIVENESS 
OPINION 

Substantial  Appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks. 

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives. 

No, or only minor, 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

The controls that are 
in place are being 
consistently applied. 

Moderate  In the main there 
are appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks reviewed albeit 
with some that are 
not fully effective. 

Generally, a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives with some 
exceptions. 

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

Evidence of non-
compliance with 
some controls, that 
may put some of the 
system objectives at 
risk.  

Limited  A number of 
significant gaps 
identified in the 
procedures and 
controls in key 
areas. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

System of internal 
controls is weakened 
with system 
objectives at risk of 
not being achieved. 

A number of 
reoccurring 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the 
system objectives at 
risk. 

No  For all risk areas 
there are significant 
gaps in the 
procedures and 
controls. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Poor system of 
internal control. 

Due to absence of 
effective controls 
and procedures, no 
reliance can be 
placed on their 
operation. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Non-compliance 
and/or compliance 
with inadequate 
controls. 

RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE 

High  A weakness where there is substantial risk of loss, fraud, impropriety, poor value for money, or 
failure to achieve organisational objectives. Such risk could lead to an adverse impact on the 
business. Remedial action must be taken urgently. 

Medium  A weakness in control which, although not fundamental, relates to shortcomings which expose 
individual business systems to a less immediate level of threatening risk or poor value for 
money. Such a risk could impact on operational objectives and should be of concern to senior 
management and requires prompt specific action. 

Low  Areas that individually have no significant impact, but where management would benefit from 
improved controls and/or have the opportunity to achieve greater effectiveness and/or 
efficiency. 

Page 50



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

APPENDIX III - TERMS OF REFERENCE 

PURPOSE OF REVIEW: 

To provide assurance on the extent of implementation of the workforce development strategy, 
and that planning and required resources are in place to enable delivery of the strategy. We 
will also review the impact of CV-19 on its aims and progress.  

KEY RISKS: 

Based upon the risk assessment undertaken during the development of the internal audit 
operational plan, through discussions with management, and our collective audit knowledge 
and understanding the key risks associated with the area under review are:  

• The Council’s Workforce Transformation strategy has not been updated to reflect
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on ways of working with reference to the new
Hybrid procedures

• The Council has not ensured all staff roles have been covered by the Hybrid Policy

• The Council fail to continue to review the effects of a permanent change to hybrid
working on the cost and delivery of key services

• Any loss of productivity, staff engagement or development caused by remote
working in the future is not monitored or acted upon

• The Council fails to continue to assess the views of staff and management on
workforce transformation and fails to put an action plan in place as required.

SCOPE OF REVIEW: 

The following areas will be covered as part of this review: 

• Hold discussions with management to confirm how the Council will review and update
its Workforce Development Strategy to be fit for purpose following the impact of
Covid-19

• Confirm if there is a process whereby all roles are regularly reviewed and approved
before a decision is made whether roles can be carried out remotely or through hybrid
working

• Review the Council’s Hybrid Policy and confirm whether it clearly sets out how staff
can choose which way of working they prefer, depending on their role

• Review the results of the Council’s Hybrid Working trial and confirm whether it has
clearly identified what is working and what requires further improvement in delivering
the Council’s Workforce Transformation strategy

• Review the Terms of Reference and minutes for the Council’s Future Ways of Working
Group and Covid-19 Reset and Recovery Working Group and confirm whether there is
a clear discussion and monitoring held around Workforce Transformation and new ways
of working following the Covid-19 pandemic

• Review the results of the latest staff survey carried out in relation to Workforce
Transformation and overall ways of working and confirm whether a subsequent action
plan has been put in place to address key themes and concerns raised.

APPROACH: 

Our approach will be to conduct interviews to establish the controls in operation for each of 
our areas of audit work. We will then seek documentary evidence that these controls are 
designed as described. We will evaluate these controls to identify whether they adequately 
address the risks. 

We will seek to gain evidence of the satisfactory operation of the controls to verify the 

effectiveness of the control through use of a range of tools and techniques. 

Page 51



FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

Greg Rubins 

Greg.Rubins@bdo.co.uk 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our 
audit and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all 
improvements that might be made.  The report has been prepared solely for the management of the 
organisation and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  BDO LLP 
neither owes nor accepts any duty to any third party whether in contract or in tort and shall not be 
liable, in respect of any loss, damage or expense which is caused by their reliance on this report. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number 
OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and 
forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members' 
names is open to inspection at our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is 
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business. 

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, is licensed 
to operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

Copyright ©2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

Page 52



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT (CRM) 
MARCH 2022 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE 

Design Operational Effectiveness 

Moderate Moderate 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6d



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................. 55 

DETAILED FINDINGS .................................................................... 58 

STAFF INTERVIEWED .................................................................. 63 

APPENDIX I – DEFINITIONS ............................................................ 64 

APPENDIX II - TERMS OF REFERENCE ............................................... 65 

DISTRIBUTION 

Chris Leslie Director of Resources 

Sue Green Customer, Community and Casework Manager 

REPORT STATUS LIST 

Auditors: Helena Warnett 

Dates work performed: 14 December 2021 - 11 January 2022 

Draft report issued: 19 January 2022 

Final report issued: 8 March 2022 

Page 54



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE: (SEE APPENDIX I FOR DEFINITIONS) 

Design Moderate  
Generally, a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
system objectives with some exceptions. 

Effectiveness Moderate  
Evidence of non-compliance with some controls, that may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: (SEE APPENDIX I) 

High 0 

Medium 2 

Low 0 

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 2 

CRR REFERENCE 

R26 - Failure to deliver channel shift, through lack of customer engagement or undelivered 
processes 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Council’s restructure, a procurement process was undertaken for a new 
customer relationship management (CRM) system. This procurement was led by  consultants 
Ignite with an understanding that a channel shift was needed to achieve the expected savings 
through  an improved CRM system, with the ability for customers to ‘selfserve’, which would 
improve efficiency and free up officer time. Firmstep was already in place at the Council, 
being used as an electronic forms system. The outcome of the procurement process was to 
enter into a contract with Firmstep for an enhanced product that would deliver a full end to 
end CRM system (Dash) that would integrate with the e-forms system 

Dash went live in October 2019. Whilst it has improved the ability of customers to submit 
information online and access help from home, issues have been encountered with how Dash 
interacts with  back-office systems.  

The main issue identified post implementation of the CRM system was the system’s inability 
to link to the Council’s other back-office systems, which has resulted in large amounts of 
duplication. In order for front and back office systems to exchange information smoothly it  is 
necessary to have as a full suite of Applications  Programmer  Interface (API’s) . These were 
not purchased as part of the procurement process due to cost (both the cost of the purchasing 
of the API’s and resources to implement them). This has resulted in significant duplication of 
work which has involved having to carry out manual intervention between the different back-
office systems, which has led to data being input twice. It is also a requirement to have two 
systems open to initiate a customer action. 

Other issues with the CRM system include the system’s inability to allow cases to be viewed 
once they have been submitted and therefore If a customer wants to include further 
information to support their case, they will have to submit a new form which would not be 
linked to the original form and as such, they may not be processed together. This has led to 
complaints from the customer if they have received a notification from the Council to inform 
them their case has been closed but they do not feel their case has been satisfactory resolved. 

Page 55



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

It also prevents Case Officers being able to view a full case history via Dash, which again 
causes inefficiencies. 

Performance Management is also problematic as there is not an inbuilt function which allows 
performance management data to be gathered.  This leads to issues with reviewing staff 
performance. 

GOOD PRACTICE 

The following areas of good practice were identified: 

• Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) have been set for the customer relationship
management system and are reported to the Senior Leadership Team at monthly
meetings through the balanced scorecard. Any exceptions to delivery are reported to
members at quarterly meetings.

• The Council is taking the following actions and steps to improve the processes in
place regarding customer relationship management:

o The Council is planning to move away from Firmstep and implement a new
system called Dynamics 365. This is the Council's long term strategic
objective.

o The CRM supplier was brought in to undertake a health check of the system
and provide guidance and recommendations on how to improve it soon after
implementation.

o The sign-off for the development of the Dynamics 365 system was received
at the December 2021 Project Board Meeting

o The Council has won joint funding with Colchester and Tendring Council to
start developing a Dynamics Customer Relationship Management tool

o The Council are undertaking collaborative work through the Essex Online
Partnership to share learning

o The Council undertakes routine system upgrades and development work in
order to build on and improve the current Customer Relationship
Management System.

o The Council have developed a process improvement framework that sets
out the improvements they are making to customer journeys, which
includes the work they have undertaken on the Customer Relationship
Management system to improve the customer relationship process.

KEY FINDINGS 

• Benefits Realisation Document - A specific benefits realisation document was not
developed as part of the procurement process prior to the implementation of the
CRM system (Finding 1 – Medium)

• System limitations – The Council has not developed a sufficient issues log and is
unable to utilise this as part of its steps to address limitations of the current system
(Finding 2 – Medium)

CONCLUSION 

We noted a number of good practices the Council has in place in relation to the Council’s 

Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system including the robust reporting of KPI’s and 
exception reporting along with the Council’s work programmes to improve the customer 
relationship management process.  

However, a specific benefits realisation document was not developed as part of the 
procurement process prior to the implementation of the CRM system and the Council does not 
have a sufficient issues log which could be used to inform the development of the future 
Dynamics 365 system. 

Page 56



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

This has led us to conclude a moderate assurance over the design of the controls and a 
moderate assurance over the operational effectiveness of controls.  

Page 57



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS 

RISK: EXPECTED BENEFITS OF THE CRM SYSTEM WERE NOT IDENTIFIED AS PART OF THE 
PROCUREMENT PROCESS AND/OR EXPECTED BENEFITS HAVE NOT BEEN REVIEWED TO ASSESS IF 
THEY HAVE BEEN ACHIEVED. 

Ref Significance Finding 

1 Medium Benefits Realisation Document 

The purpose of developing a Benefits Realisation document is to 
formally identify the specific benefits that a system aims to achieve 
post-implementation. The Benefits Realisation document also sets out 
how these benefits will be planned for, tracked and realised through 
the implementation of the system. It is a vital part of the benefits 
management process that assessable measures are identified to ensure 
that expected benefits have been reviewed to assess if they have been 
achieved. 

A Benefits Realisation document was not developed as part of the 
procurement of the CRM system.  

We acknowledge that Ignite (the consultancy firm contracted by the 
Council to lead the transformation) led on the procurement of the CRM 
system and set a short timeframe between the procurement and 
implementation of the CRM system. The Council therefore did not have 
sufficient input into the procurement or the implementation stages of 
the system due to shortened timeframes set by Ignite. 

The risk to the Council of not developing a specific Benefits Realisation 
document prior to the implementation of the CRM system is that the 
success of the CRM system has no measurable criteria to be assessed 
against and therefore expected benefits cannot be 'realised' which 
could result in unexpected costs, poor resource allocation and the loss 
of employees’ productive time if the system fails to improve existing 
business practices within the organisation. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Council should ensure a Benefits Realisation document is used as part of future projects. 
This includes the Dynamics 365 system which has been signed-off for development at the 
December 2021 Project Board Meeting. The Benefits Realisation document for the Dynamics 
365 procurement, and future procurements, should include:  

• A description of the expected benefits to be achieved

• An outline of how expected benefits will be quantified and measured

• A definition of what the combined set of benefits looks like

• An outline of what systems and processes will be used to record the process of the
expected benefits

• An outline of the governance arrangements in place throughout and post-system
implementation.

Page 58



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

The procurement of the Firmstep CRM product was led by Ignite Consultancy as part of a full 
council transformation programme, which was undertaken at pace. As a result, no formal 
Benefits realisation document was produced specifically related the CRM system by Ignite. 

Early recognition by the Council of the system limitations resulted in a health check undertaken 
by the suppliers which confirmed that the system was unlikely to be able to operate effectively 
due to the new model of working that the Council had introduced.  

The project to develop a replacement for the Firmstep system will include a full benefits 
realisation document. There will be comprehensive user input into the project to clearly 
identify the systems requirements, reducing the risks that the benefits of the project will not 
be realised. 

The new Project Management Office (PMO) processes include a benefits section which outlines 
the benefit that will be realised for each project. This is included in the process templates and 
tracked as part of the project management reporting. When the original CRM system was 
implemented the PMO did not exist. 

Responsible Officer: Cheryl Hughes (Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager)
Grant Hulley (Lead Specialist: ICT Infrastructure) 

Implementation Date: July 2022 

Page 59



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

RISK: SINCE ITS ROLE OUT, THE COUNCIL HAS NOT TAKEN STEPS TO IDENTIFY AND ADDRESS 

THE LIMITATIONS OF THE SYSTEM.  

Ref Significance Finding 

2 Medium System Limitations 

Post-implementation reviews are undertaken following the 
implementation of a new system within an organisation to evaluate 
whether the objectives of the system have been met, to determine if 
the system was installed effectively, to learn lessons for the future and 
ensure that the organisation gets the best possible benefit from its 
implementation.  

Where system limitations have been identified, it is essential that the 
organisation takes steps to address the limitations of the system. 

We identified a number of issues the Council has encountered since the 
implementation of the system, such as: 

• The CRM system is not compatible with other Council systems
and does not link into the back-office systems, which results in
duplication of work

• The CRM System is unable to display a full case history. This
causes an issue because the current officer dealing with the
case is unable to see what previous action has been taken to
deal with the customer’s case and who the previous officer was
handling the case. This can lead to duplication of work and can
result in the Council appearing unprofessional if they are asking
the customer to provide details already provided.

• The CRM system has a poor search functionality – it is very hard
to find cases once they have been responded to or closed down
unless an officer has retained the case number

• Once an officer has responded to a case, the case closes,
however the case may not be resolved to the customer’s
satisfaction - this leads to customer dissatisfaction if they
choose to raise an additional query or come back on their
original query because a new case has to be opened

• Manual intervention between the different back-office systems
are required, which leads to data being entered twice; it is also
a requirement to have two systems open to initiate a customer
action

• There is an option to add case notes to the file, however, whilst
the system initially highlights in yellow that another user is
working on a customer case file, this alert disappears, resulting
in users being able to update case files notes, which creates
duplication of work

• Performance Management is inefficient as there is no way of
looking at the number of cases being dealt with by each
individual in the team. This makes it particularly hard to
effectively review individual staff performance.

We acknowledge that there is an issues log in operation at the Council 
where known issues with the system can be identified and recorded. 
However, on review of the issues log we identified: 

Page 60



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

• There is no indication of when the issue arose

• A priority rating has not been assigned to the issue

• There is not an assignment owner to determine who will be
responsible for resolving the issue

• There is not a target resolution date to determine the deadline
for resolving the issue.

As noted in the good practice section above, the Council has undertaken 
a number of actions to identify and address the limitations of the 
system. However, it has been acknowledged that to fully address the 
issues the Council would have to purchase a number of APIs (Application 
Programming Interfaces) to allow the CRM system to communicate with 
other back-office systems. This is considered too costly, resulting in the 
decision to implement Dynamics 365, with the aim of significant savings 
for the Council over the next three to five years.  

There is an acceptance that the additional, manual administrative work 
associated with the CRM system will continue until Dynamics 365 is in a 
position to be used consistently across the Council. As noted in Finding 
1, due to the Ignite-led procurement of the current system the Council 
was unable to fully assure itself that the system was sufficiently suited 
to its needs. This has resulted in a system which was quickly identified 
as not being fit for purpose 

If the limitations of the system are not sufficiently recorded and 
reviewed as part of the development and implementation of Dynamics 
365 there is an increased risk of poor allocation of resources, inefficient 
use of employees’ time and issues in other business areas which could 
lead to inadequate customer service. 

RECOMMENDATION 

A) The issues log should be updated to contain the following information:

• The type of issue identified

• Identifier - Record who discovered the issue

• Timing - Indicate when the issue was identified

• Description - Details should be provided about the system limitation, and the
potential impact the issue could have if it remains unresolved

• Priority - A priority rating should be assigned to the issue - e.g. high, medium
or low priority

• Assignment/owner - Determine who is responsible for resolving the issue

• Target resolution date - Determine the deadline for resolving the issue.

B) The Council should ensure that, as part of the build and implementation of the
Dynamics 365 system, the limitations of the current CRM system are reviewed to ensure
they will be resolved

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

The Council recognises that whilst a log of issues has been kept, this is not a comprehensive 

record. As there is little opportunity to customise or change the system functionality to support 

the new operating model of the Council, (as confirmed in the report from the supplier,) the 

focus is to identify and record the issues to ensure these are built into the specification for the 

replacement system. 

Page 61



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

An updated issues log will continue to be maintained for this purpose but will include additional 

information as recommended. This issues log will form a key part of informing the specification 

for the replacement CRM system. 

Responsible Officer: Grant Hulley (Lead Specialist: ICT Infrastructure) 

Implementation Date: September 2022 (for build specification to be completed) 

Page 62



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

STAFF INTERVIEWED 

BDO LLP APPRECIATES THE TIME PROVIDED BY ALL THE INDIVIDUALS INVOLVED IN THIS REVIEW 
AND WOULD LIKE TO THANK THEM FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE AND COOPERATION. 

Sue Green Customer, Community and Casework Manager 

Cheryl Hughes Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager 

Hannah Wheatley Specialist Services Manager 

Lauraine Brunt Senior Casework Coordinator 

Jayne Stevens Senior Casework Coordinator 

Nicola Syder Senior Community Engagement Coordinator 

Luke Daley Customer Solutions Coordinator 

Joanne Bratt Senior Customer Solutions Coordinator 

Page 63



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX I – DEFINITIONS 

LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

DESIGN OF INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK OPERATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

DESIGN 
OPINION 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

EFFECTIVENESS 
OPINION 

Substantial  Appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks. 

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives. 

No, or only minor, 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

The controls that are 
in place are being 
consistently applied. 

Moderate  In the main there 
are appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks reviewed albeit 
with some that are 
not fully effective. 

Generally, a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives with some 
exceptions. 

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

Evidence of non-
compliance with 
some controls, that 
may put some of the 
system objectives at 
risk.  

Limited  A number of 
significant gaps 
identified in the 
procedures and 
controls in key 
areas. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

System of internal 
controls is weakened 
with system 
objectives at risk of 
not being achieved. 

A number of 
reoccurring 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the 
system objectives at 
risk. 

No  For all risk areas 
there are significant 
gaps in the 
procedures and 
controls. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Poor system of 
internal control. 

Due to absence of 
effective controls 
and procedures, no 
reliance can be 
placed on their 
operation. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Non-compliance 
and/or compliance 
with inadequate 
controls. 

RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE 

High  A weakness where there is substantial risk of loss, fraud, impropriety, poor value for money, or 
failure to achieve organisational objectives. Such risk could lead to an adverse impact on the 
business. Remedial action must be taken urgently. 

Medium  A weakness in control which, although not fundamental, relates to shortcomings which expose 
individual business systems to a less immediate level of threatening risk or poor value for 
money. Such a risk could impact on operational objectives and should be of concern to senior 
management and requires prompt specific action. 

Low  Areas that individually have no significant impact, but where management would benefit from 
improved controls and/or have the opportunity to achieve greater effectiveness and/or 
efficiency. 

Page 64



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX II - TERMS OF REFERENCE 

PURPOSE OF REVIEW 

The purpose of this review is to assess areas such as effectiveness of the CRM system and 

whether it has delivered the benefits it was expected to deliver 

KEY RISKS 

• Expected benefits of the CRM system were not identified as part of the procurement
process and/or expected benefits have not been reviewed to assess if they have been
achieved

• Performance indicators have not been set and/or are not being monitored and
reported against

• Since its role out, the Council has not taken steps to identify and address the
limitations of the system

• The Council has not established future actions to ensure the customer relationship
process is improved

SCOPE OF REVIEW 

The following areas will be covered as part of this review: 

• We will assess whether a benefits realisation document was developed as part of the
procurement of the system and whether this has been measured against 
• We will review KPIs for the CRM system and confirm whether these are being met and if
they are reported against 
• We will establish the work completed to identify and record the known issues of the
system including review of the Firmstep consultancy report 
• We will identify what actions and steps are being taken to improve the processes in
place regarding customer relationship management and if these are sufficient. 

However, Internal Audit will bring to the attention of management any points relating to other 
areas that come to their attention during the course of the audit. We assume for the purposes 
of estimating the number of days of audit work that there is one control environment, and 
that we will be providing assurance over controls in this environment. If this is not the case, 
our estimate of audit days may not be accurate. 

APPROACH 

Our approach will be to conduct interviews to establish the controls in operation for each of 
our areas of audit work. We will then seek documentary evidence that these controls are 
designed as described. We will evaluate these controls to identify whether they adequately 
address the risks. We will seek to gain evidence of the satisfactory operation of the controls 
to verify the effectiveness of the control through use of a range of tools and techniques. 

Page 65



FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

Greg Rubins 

Greg.Rubins@bdo.co.uk 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our 
audit and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all 
improvements that might be made.  The report has been prepared solely for the management of the 
organisation and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.  BDO LLP 
neither owes nor accepts any duty to any third party whether in contract or in tort and shall not be 
liable, in respect of any loss, damage or expense which is caused by their reliance on this report. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number 
OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and 
forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members' 
names is open to inspection at our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is 
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business. 

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, is licensed 
to operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms. 

Copyright ©2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

Page 66



INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL 
STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE   

Maldon District Council 

2021/22 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6e



   

Page 

Summary of 2021/22 Work 69

Review of 2021/22 Work 71

Summary of Findings 76

Added Value 77

Key Themes 78

Background to Annual Opinion 79

Key Performance Indicators 82

Appendix 1: Opinion and recommendation 
significance 

83

CONTENTS

Page 68



 

 

Internal Audit 2021/22 

This report details the work undertaken by internal audit for Maldon District Council and provides 
an overview of the effectiveness of the controls in place for the full year. The following reports 
have been issued for this financial year: 

• Main Financial Systems

• Strategic Performance – Community

• Covid Recovery Plan

• Management of Property

• Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

• IT Strategy & Transformation

• Policy Review

• Partnerships

• Workforce Management

We have detailed the opinions of each report and key findings on pages four to eight. Our internal 
audit work for the 12-month period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 was carried out in accordance 
with the internal audit plan approved by management and the Governance and Scrutiny Committee. 
The plan was based upon discussions held with management and was constructed in such a way as to 
gain a level of assurance on the main financial and management systems reviewed. There were no 
restrictions placed upon the scope of our audit and our work complied with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

The role of internal audit is to provide an opinion to the Council, through the Performance, 

Governance and Audit Committee (PGA) on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 

system to ensure the achievement of the organisation’s objectives in the areas reviewed. The annual 

report from internal audit provides an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes, within the scope of work 

undertaken by our firm as outsourced providers of the internal audit service. It also summarises the 

activities of internal audit for the period. The basis for forming my opinion is as follows: 

• An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance Framework and
supporting processes

• An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit assignments 
contained within internal audit risk-based plans that have been reported throughout the year

• This assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s
progress in respect of addressing control weaknesses; and

• Any reliance that is being placed upon third party assurances.

SUMMARY OF 2021/22 WORK

Page 69



 

Overall, we are able to provide moderate assurance that there is a sound system of internal control, 
designed to meet the Council’s objectives and that controls are being applied consistently. In forming 
our view, we have taken into account that:  

• In the current year the majority of audits provided substantial assurance in the design of controls
(Substantial: 6, Moderate: 3)

• In the current year the majority of audits provided moderate assurance in the operational
effectiveness of controls (Substantial: 2, Moderate: 7)

• We did not issue a limited report during the course of the year and our audits of Covid recovery
and workforce management provided substantial assurance.

• Some areas of weakness have been identified through our reviews, including opportunities for
improvement in the management of property and assets, specifically in relation to cyclical repairs
as well as the need to establish a clear list of requirements to ensure a suitable customer
relationship management system is procured in the future, achieving the benefits expected.
Additionally, improvement is required in the governance of partnerships with Member
representation, whilst the IT Strategy requires updating to reference key policies and procedures.
However, the Council is already working to address the issues identified.

• The Council have implemented the majority of audit recommendations from prior years, with 10
recommendations currently overdue from across 18/19, 19/20 and 20/21. Recommendations
outstanding from these years include Safe & Clean Environment, Flood Risk Management,
Safeguarding, Affordable Housing and Knowledge Management. Whilst the delay in the
implementation of these recommendations has been impacted by operational staff capacity due
to Covid as well as other competing priorities, we would expect these to be completed as soon
as possible.

• Of the current year recommendations that are either high or medium (11), eight have been
completed, one is overdue and two are not yet due for implementation.

• Overall, while there remain some gaps and risks, our work has concluded that the Council has
generally been able to maintain reasonable controls, particularly given the ongoing impact of
Covid on operations and workforce during the year. Good practice was identified in areas such as
the review of the Covid Recovery Plan as well as budgetary control, reviewed as part of this
year’s Main Financial System Review. However, the ongoing delays in the implementation of
recommendations has been noted and requires improvement.

Page 70



 

Report Issued 
Recommend
ations and 

significance 

Overall Report Conclusions 
(see Appendix 1)     

Summary of Key Findings / Recommendations 

H M L Design 
Operational 

Effectiveness 

Main Financial 
Systems 

- - 4 Substantial Moderate 

The Council is required to have sound controls in place in its financial systems, in order 
to prevent and detect error and fraud. As part of our cyclical review of main financial 
systems we looked at General Ledger, Journals, Budgetary Control and Treasury 
Management.   

We raised four findings regarding consistency between the Treasury Management Policy 
and the Treasury Management Strategy, the review of reconciliations between the 
General Ledger and Feeder Systems, the management of the suspense account and 
journal approvals.  

Overall, our audit found that whilst the Council has robust controls in place with regards 
to the use of Sage and Pinnacle, in addition to budget setting and monitoring, further 
improvements are required in terms of keeping the suspense account cleared regularly, 
ensuring a complete audit trail of journal entries and making sure feeder system 
reconciliations are clearly approved regardless of whether they show any un-reconciling 
balances or not. Additionally, the Council should ensure the limits in the Treasury 
Management Policy reflect the limits set out within the Treasury Management Strategy. 
As a result, we provided substantial assurance over the design of controls and moderate 
assurance of the effectiveness of controls in place. 

Strategic 
Performance – 
Community 

- 1 - Substantial Moderate 

The Council’s Community Strategy has recently been updated to ensure it underpins its 
Corporate Plan, which was refreshed in light of covid19 and sets out the vision to achieve 
a ‘Sustainable Council –Prosperous Future’, in addition to three priority strategic themes 
–Community, Place and Prosperity.

The purpose of the audit was to carry out a deep dive review into effectiveness of the 
actions underpinning the Community theme and the success of these actions given the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on vulnerable members of the community.  

We only identified one key finding within this review which is that there is inconsistent 
development of action plans when a KPI is seen to fall behind target and these action 

REVIEW OF 2021/22 WORK

P
age 71



 

plans are not reported to the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee for 
scrutiny, just a headline summary. 

Our review has found that the Council undertook extensive discussion and review when 
developing the updated corporate objectives and the Community team feel assured that 
the vulnerable are appropriately considered. Furthermore, we have been advised the 
Council has good relationships with its Community Strategy partners and we have seen 
evidence that strategy performance is regularly monitored. However, performance 
monitoring and review could be improved when KPIs fall behind target and the refreshed 
Strategy document currently lacks inclusion of targets and detail. We are aware that 
finalising the Community Strategy is already a key priority of the Community team and 
therefore, this has led to a final assessment of moderate assurance over the control 
design and moderate assurance over the control effectiveness 

Covid Recovery 
Plan  

- - 1 Substantial Substantial 

In response to the Covid 19 pandemic Maldon District Council developed a Covid Recovery 
Framework to outline the priority of operational work as well as to prepare for the long-
term recovery of the District. It seeks to provide a framework to set out the key areas to 
consider and highlight where more detailed plans are required. 

The purpose of this review to was assess the controls in place regarding the 
implementation of the Council’s Covid Recovery Framework, including how it is 
monitored and managed so that it is effective in its objectives. 

Our review found that the Council has an adequate Recovery Framework in place that is 
well managed and supported with key processes, controls, and documentation. Minor 
exceptions were noted regarding the need to revise and review terms of reference for 
the Rest and Recovery Group and developing more KPIs, but this did not affect our final 
assessment of substantial assurance over the control design and substantial assurance 
over the control effectiveness. 

Management of 
Property 

1 3 - Moderate Moderate 

Maldon District Council has responsibility for various property assets including parks, 
leisure centres, open spaces, other buildings as well as the MDC offices. The assets are 
predominately managed via excel spreadsheets which hold information on leases, rental 
agreements, invoicing details, and maintenance schedules. 

The purpose of this audit was to review the Council’s arrangements in place for ensuring 
property is managed effectively and efficiently.  

We raised one high finding highlighting that the Council does not have a process for the 
monitoring and completion of cyclical repairs that may be required under the Council 
leasing responsibilities and that the system Uniform is not used to its full extent to ensure 

P
age 72



 

that all relevant documentation relating to an asset is easily accessible. Three medium 
findings have also been raised regarding policies and procedures, the lack of regular asset 
review and that the actions required to be completed as part of the aged debtor process 
are not being undertaken.   

Council assets are held centrally on Uniform with an Asset and Maintenance Co-Ordinator 
in place to maintain oversight of managing properties. The Council maintains a central 
register of assets as part of its Uniform system; however, this is not used to its full extent 
resulting in a lack of associated documentation relating to maintenance and leases held 
for each asset. Additional findings in respect of debts not being chased and a lack of 
guidance, protocols, and strategy for managing property has led to moderate assurance 
able to be provided over both the design and operational effectiveness of the controls in 
place regarding the management of property. 

Customer 
Relationship 
Management (CRM) 

- 2 - Moderate Moderate 

As part of the Council’s restructure, a procurement process was undertaken for a new 
customer relationship management (CRM) system. This procurement was led by 
consultants Ignite with an understanding that a channel shift was needed to achieve the 
expected savings through an improved CRM system, with the ability for customers to 
‘selfserve’, which would improve efficiency and free up officer time. Firmstep was 
already in place at the Council, being used as an electronic forms system. The outcome 
of the procurement process was to enter a contract with Firmstep for an enhanced 
product that would deliver a full end to end CRM system (Dash) that would integrate with 
the e-forms system 

Dash went live in October 2019. Whilst it has improved the ability of customers to submit 
information online and access help from home, issues have been encountered with how 
Dash interacts with back-office systems. The purpose of this review is to assess areas 
such as effectiveness of the CRM system and whether it has delivered the benefits it was 
expected to deliver. 

Two medium priority recommendations were raised as a specific benefits realisation 
document was not developed as part of the procurement process prior to the 
implementation of the CRM system and the Council has not developed a sufficient issues 
log and is unable to utilise this as part of its steps to address limitations of the current 
system.  

IT Strategy & 
Transformation 

- 2 - Moderate Moderate 

The purpose of our review was to provide assurance that key controls have been 
established to ensure that the Council’s IT Strategy is appropriately designed and 
embedded within the Council’s operations and that action plans and objectives are 
implemented to support the achievement of wider corporate objectives. 

P
age 73



 

We raised two medium priority recommendations to improve the Council’s arrangements 
for the development, ongoing monitoring, and delivery of its IT Strategy. The Council has 
an overall robust control environment, derived primarily from informally defined 
responsibilities for the two boards overseeing the Council’s IT strategic direction.  

However, the gaps identified in the strategy document and the governance arrangements 
could impact the Council’s ability to achieve its IT and digital objectives in line with its 
wider corporate plan and strategic expectations. Consequently, we conclude moderate 
assurance over both the design of the Council’s IT strategy controls and their operational 
effectiveness. 

Policy Review - 1 - Substantial Moderate 

The adoption of sound and up to date policies and procedures is a key control contributing 
to the Council’s ability to meet its objectives and comply with legislative requirements 
and good practice.  This review sought to provide assurance that the Council has effective 
arrangements to ensure relevant and up to date policies are in place. 

We selected a sample of10 policies and found various deficiencies with the recording and 
monitoring procedures, including two policies that had passed their review date and one 
where the review date was not clear. The owner of each policy was not stated. 

Whilst the Council has a sound system of internal controls for key policies, we identified 
that these were not adhered to in relation to the updating of policies. There is a lack of 
clarity regarding assigned responsibility for individual policies which has led to us to 
conclude substantial assurance on the design of controls and moderate assurance on the 
effectiveness of the controls. 

Partnerships - 3 - Moderate Moderate 

Partnerships are increasingly seen as a key approach to working and a means of achieving 
corporate objectives and delivering improved outcomes and efficient, effective services 
through collaboration with different organisations. Partnerships may also provide 
leverage to source additional funding or reduce risks. 

This review was designed to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
arrangements for the management of Partnerships and Smart Partners given the 
outcomes within the Corporate Plan to deliver various projects with partner involvement. 

Three medium findings have been raised: 

• There is no documented guidance detailing the difference between smart and
formal partners and the requirements expected to be in place for both

• Following the update to the Corporate Plan the three thematic strategies have
not yet been updated to reflect this

• Whilst Members are nominated to sit on the Board of each of the formal
partners, there is little feedback received and documentation held on ModGov

P
age 74



We concluded that the Council has a good understanding of the partnerships it holds, be 
it with smart or formal partners. As opposed to some other Councils we have undertaken 
this review at, where there is little record of the partnerships and who is responsible for 
them, Maldon has ensured partners are recorded in central documents and, in respect of 
the thematic strategies, the purpose of these partnerships is known. However, where the 
Council has differentiated between smart and formal partners, there is a lack of guidance 
detailing what is to be expected to be in place for each, whilst feedback as to the work 
undertaken at formal partners is not readily available. In addition, updates are required 
to the thematic strategies following the renewed corporate objectives. This has led to a 
moderate assurance over both the design and operational effectiveness of controls in 
place regarding partnerships and their management. 

Workforce 
Management 

- - 1 Substantial Substantial 

During the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, Maldon District Council developed a 
Workforce Strategy in order to identify how the Council will meet current and future 
people needs to ensure there is a highly skilled workforce in place to deliver the Council’s 
services. Our last audit of the Council’s Workforce Strategy was carried out in November 
2020 where we reviewed the Council’s Strategic Plan for People and Workforce 
Development, in addition to the supporting action plan to facilitate its implementation. 

The purpose of the review was to provide assurance on the extent of implementation of 
the workforce transformation strategy, and that planning and required resources are in 
place to enable delivery of the strategy. We also reviewed the impact of CV-19 on its 
aims and progress.  

We concluded that the Council is making good progress with the implementation of the 
Strategy, and that planning and required resources are in place to enable delivery of the 
strategy. However, through benchmarking against other Council strategies, we identified 
one finding in that there is potential scope to improve the layout of the strategy whilst 
ensuring all relevant areas are covered. 

P
age 75



 

 

 

Recommendations 
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Control Design 
2019/20  2020/21 2021/22 

Operational Effectiveness 
2019/20  2020/21 2021/22 

5

22

7
2

10

4
1

7

6

2

4

1

1

3

4

6

3

5

2

1

3

4

2

7

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSURANCE DASHBOARD 

Page 76



 

 

USE OF SPECIALISTS

We undertook one IT review this year (IT Strategy and 
Transformation) and deployed an IT specialist to undertake the 
work.

RESPONSIVENESS

We ensured we were responsive to the Council's needs and, 
following scoping for an audit originally planned, we adjusted the 
audit plan to accommodate a separate audit (Contract 
Management) which was felt to be of more relevance.

BENCHMARKING AND BEST PRACTICE

Benchmarking was completed in a number of our reviews, 
including Covid Recovery Plan as well as Workforce Management. 
Further, we shared evidence of best practice in the Policy Review 
audit.

INNOVATION

As noted above, we utillised our audit days to ensure areas of 
highest risk were covered. Additionally, we undertook data 
analytics where possible including in Main Financial Systems.

ADDED VALUE

Page 77



 

 

PEOPLE

The Council welcomed internal audit and provided us with strong 
levels of time and support during our reviews. However, training 
attendance of Members could be improved as noted in Health and 
Safety and Corporate Governance respectively.

SYSTEMS & PROCESSES

We identified that the systems and processes were largely 
operating effectively.  Only minor areas for improvement were 
noted, for example the clearing of the suspense account and the 
need to sign and date monthy reconciliations between Sage and 
Academy.

POLICES & PROCEDURES

Overall, policies and procedures were in place and were subject to 
approval throughout service areas within the Council. Adherence 
was positive in most cases, however, the need to develop an Asset 
Strategy and update the IT strategy was noted.

GOVERNANCE & FOLLOW UP

Governance processes were largely robust with formal reporting 
lines established. However, as already noted within the report, a 
number of recommendations remain overdue, some dating back to 
18/19.

KEY THEMES

Page 78



Introduction 

Our role as internal auditors to Maldon District Council is to provide an opinion to the Board, through 
the Performance, Governance & Audit Committee (PGA), on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal control system to ensure the achievement of the organisation’s objectives in the areas 
reviewed. Our approach, as set out in the firm’s Internal Audit Manual, is to help the organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 

Our internal audit work for the 12-month period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 was carried out 
in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by officers and the Performance, Governance & 
Audit Committee, adjusted during the year for any emerging risk issues. The plan was based upon 
discussions held with management and was constructed in such a way as to gain a level of assurance 
on the main financial and management systems reviewed. There were no restrictions placed upon 
the scope of our audit and our work complied with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

The annual report from internal audit provides an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes, within the scope of work 
undertaken by our firm as outsourced providers of the internal audit service. It also summarises the 
activities of internal audit for the period. 

Scope and Approach 

Audit Approach 

We have reviewed the control policies and procedures employed by Maldon District Council to manage 
risks in business areas identified by management set out in the 2021-22 Internal Audit Annual Plan 
approved by the Performance, Governance & Audit Committee. This report is made solely in relation 
to those business areas and risks reviewed in the year and does not relate to any of the other 
operations of the organisation. Our approach complies with best professional practice, in particular, 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors’ Position 
Statement on Risk Based Internal Auditing. 

We discharge our role, as detailed within the audit planning documents agreed with Maldon District 
Council management for each review, by: 

• Considering the risks that have been identified by management as being associated with the
processes under review

• Reviewing the written policies and procedures and holding discussions with management to
identify process controls

• Evaluating the risk management activities and controls established by management to address the
risks it is seeking to manage

• Performing walkthrough tests to determine whether the expected risk management activities and
controls are in place

• Performing compliance tests (where appropriate) to determine that the risk management
activities and controls have operated as expected during the period.

BACKGROUND TO ANNUAL OPINION

Page 79



 

The opinion provided on page 4 of this report is based on historical information and the projection of 
any information or conclusions contained in our opinion to any future periods is subject to the risk 
that changes may alter its validity. 

Reporting Mechanisms and Practices 

Our initial draft reports are sent to the key officer responsible for the area under review in order to 
gather management responses. In every instance there is an opportunity to discuss the draft report 
in detail. Therefore, any issues or concerns can be discussed with management before finalisation of 
the reports. 

Our method of operating with the Performance, Governance & Audit Committee is to agree reports 
with management and then present and discuss the matters arising at the Performance, Governance 
& Audit Committee meetings. 

Management actions on our recommendations 

Management have generally been conscientious in reviewing and commenting on our reports. For the 
reports that have been finalised, management have responded positively. The responses indicate that 
appropriate steps to implement our recommendations are expected.  

Recommendations follow-up 

Implementation of recommendations is a key determinant of our annual opinion. If recommendations 
are not implemented in a timely manner then weaknesses in control and governance frameworks will 
remain in place. Furthermore, an unwillingness or inability to implement recommendations reflects 
poorly on management’s commitment to the maintenance of a robust control environment. 

12 recommendations relating to 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 audits remain incomplete. Of the 

nine recommendations eligible for follow-up at the end of June 2022 arising from 2021/22 audit 

reports, eight have been completed, one is overdue and two are not yet due for follow-up.  

Relationship with external audit 

All our final reports are available to the external auditors through the Performance, Governance & 
Audit Committee papers and are available on request. Our files are also available to external audit 
should they wish to review working papers to place reliance on the work of internal audit. 

Page 80



 

Report by BDO LLP to Maldon District Council 

As the internal auditors of Maldon District Council, we 
are required to provide the Performance, Governance 
& Audit Committee, and the Director with an opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk 
management, governance and internal control 
processes, as well as arrangements to promote value 
for money. 

In giving our opinion it should be noted that assurance 
can never be absolute. The internal audit service 
provides Maldon District Council with Moderate 
Assurance that there are no major weaknesses in the 
internal control system for the areas reviewed in 
2021-22. Therefore, the statement of assurance is not 
a guarantee that all aspects of the internal control 
system are adequate and effective. The statement of 
assurance should confirm that, based on the evidence 
of the audits conducted, there are no signs of material 
weaknesses in the framework of control. 

In assessing the level of assurance to be given, we 
have taken into account: 

• All internal audits undertaken by BDO LLP
during 2021-22

• Any follow-up action taken in respect of
audits from previous periods for these audit
areas

• Whether any significant recommendations
have not been accepted by management and
the consequent risks

• The effects of any significant changes in the
organisation’s objectives or systems

• Matters arising from previous internal audit
reports to Maldon District Council

• Any limitations which may have been placed
on the scope of internal audit – no restrictions
were placed on our work

Page 81



 

 

Quality Assurance Narrative RAG Rating 

Quality of work Only one survey was completed for an audit 
undertaken in the last 12 months. The overall 
experience was rated as 5/5. A review of our 
internal audit work by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors found that we generally conform with 
relevant standards, their highest rating. They 
have recommended some minor areas for 
improvement such as to our audit charter and we 
have implemented these. 

Responsiveness of the service We have responded well, with audits delayed until 
later in the year when requested, such as 
Commercialisation. Another audit 
(Communications and Stakeholder Management) 
was replaced with Contract Management to 
ensure the Council obtained the most benefit in 
an area they felt was of higher risk and to 
accommodate workforce constraints. 

Completion of audit plan We have completed all but two audit from the 
Internal Audit Programme for 2021-22. However, 
the remaining two are in draft and due to be 
finalised imminently. 

Follow-up of recommendations Non - responses are escalated via the PGA pre-
meet with instances of this being required this 
year. Generally, auditees have been receptive in 
responding to BDO for updates on 
recommendations. 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORSKEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Page 82



 

 

APPENDIX I 

Audit Recommendation made
Priority 
Level

Manager 
Responsible

Due Date Current Progress

Trust Comments:

IA Comments:

Trust Comments:

IA Comments:

Trust Comments:

IA Comments:

Trust Comments:

IA Comments:

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION

ANNUAL OPINION DEFINITION 

Substantial - Fully 

meets expectations 

Our audit work provides assurance that the arrangements should deliver the objectives and risk 
management aims of the organisation in the areas under review. There is only a small risk of 
failure or non-compliance. 

Moderate - Significantly 

meets expectations 

Our audit work provides assurance that the arrangements should deliver the objectives and risk 
management aims of the organisation in the areas under review. There is some risk of failure or
non-compliance. 

Limited - Partly meets 

expectations 

Our audit work provides assurance that the arrangements will deliver only some of the key 
objectives and risk management aims of the organisation in the areas under review. There is a
significant risk of failure or non-compliance. 

No - Does not meet 

expectations 

Our audit work provides little assurance. The arrangements will not deliver the key objectives 
and risk management aims of the organisation in the areas under review. There is an almost 
certain risk of failure or non-compliance. 

REPORT OPINION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

Level of 
Assurance 

Design Opinion Findings Effectiveness Opinion Findings 

Substantial Appropriate procedures and 
controls in place to mitigate 
the key risks.  

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives.  

No, or only minor,  
exceptions found in testing of 
the procedures and controls.  

The controls that 
are in place are 
being consistently 
applied.  

Moderate In the main, there are 
appropriate procedures and 
controls in place to mitigate 
the key risks reviewed, albeit 
with some that are not  
fully effective.  

Generally a sound  
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives with some 
exceptions.  

A small number of exceptions 
found in testing of the 
procedures and controls.  

Evidence of 
noncompliance 
with some controls 
that may put some 
of the system 
objectives at risk. 

Limited A number of significant gaps 
identified in the procedures 
and controls in key areas.  
Where practical, efforts 
should be made to address 
in-year.  

System of internal  
controls is weakened 
with system 
objectives at risk of 
not being  
achieved.  

A number of reoccurring 
exceptions found in testing of 
the procedures and controls. 
Where practical, efforts should 
be made to address in-year.  

Non-compliance 
with key 
procedures and 
controls places the 
system objectives 
at risk.  

No For all risk areas there are 
significant gaps in the 
procedures and controls. 
Failure to address in-year  
affects the quality of  
the organisation’s overall 
internal control framework. 

Poor system of 
internal control. 

Due to absence of effective 
controls and procedures, no 
reliance can be placed on their 
operation. Failure to address 
in-year affects the quality of 
the organisation’s overall 
internal control framework.  

Non-compliance 
and/or compliance 
with inadequate 
controls.  

RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE DEFINITION 

High  A weakness where there is substantial risk of loss, fraud, impropriety, poor value for money, or failure to 
achieve organisational objectives. Such risk could lead to an adverse impact on the business. Remedial 
action must be taken urgently. 

Medium  A weakness in control which, although not fundamental, relates to shortcomings which expose individual 
business systems to a less immediate level of threatening risk or poor value for money. Such a risk could 
impact on operational objectives and should be of concern to senior management and requires prompt 
specific action. 

Low Areas that individually have no significant impact, but where management would benefit from improved 
controls and/or have the opportunity to achieve greater effectiveness and/or efficiency. 

Page 83



FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

Greg Rubins 

0238 088 1892 (DDI) 

greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk  

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general 
terms and should be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied 
upon to cover specific situations and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon 
the information contained therein without obtaining specific professional advice. 
Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the context of your particular 
circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept or 
assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not 
taken by anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision 
based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under 
number OC305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent 
member firms. A list of members' names is open to inspection at our registered 
office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by 
the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern 
Ireland, is licensed to operate within the international BDO network of independent 
member firms.  

© 2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

www.bdo.co.uk 

Page 84

mailto:lucy.lloyd@bdo.co.uk
http://www.bdo.co.uk/


 

 

 

 

MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

RISK MATURITY 
JUNE 2022 
 

 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 6f



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................. 87 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK MATURITY AGAINST THE BDO RISK MATURITY MODEL .... 90 

APPENDIX I – EXAMPLE KPIS .......................................................... 100 

APPENDIX II – RISK EVALUATION GUIDANCE ........................................ 101 

APPENDIX III – RISK MATURITY ASSESSMENT MATRIX .............................. 102 

APPENDIX IV – TERMS OF REFERENCE ............................................... 104 

DISTRIBUTION 

Cheryl Hughes Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager 

Eloise Howard Specialist - Performance 

BDO LLP APPRECIATES THE TIME PROVIDED BY ALL THE INDIVIDUALS INVOLVED IN THIS REVIEW 
AND WOULD LIKE TO THANK THEM FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE AND COOPERATION. 

REPORT STATUS 

Auditors: James Savigar 

Dates work performed: 03 May 2022 – 23 June 2022 

Draft report issued: 28 June 2022 

Final report issued: 5 July 2022 

Page 86



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

SCOPE 

BACKGROUND 

The risk Management process involves the identification, evaluation and 
treatment of risk as part of a continuous process aimed at helping the 
Council and individuals reduce the incidence and impacts of risks that they 
face.    

Risk management is therefore a fundamental part of both the operational 
and strategic thinking of every part of the service delivery within the 
organisation. This includes corporate, business and financial risks. The 
previous review, completed in 2019, placed the Council as Aware or Defined 
across the five areas included in the scope.  

AREAS REVIEWED 

We considered the maturity of the Council’s current risk management 
arrangements by assessment against BDO’s risk maturity model.  The 
following elements were assessed: 

Risk 
Governance 

Risk 
Assessment 

Risk 
Mitigation 

Monitoring 
and 
Reporting 

Continuous 
Improvement 

- Strategy and 
objectives 

- Tone at the 
top 

- Roles and 
responsibilities 

- Resources 

- Training 

- Risk appetite 

- Risk strategy 

- Risk Policy 

- Risk 

Identification 

- Risk Analysis 

- Risk 
Evaluation 

- Assigning  
responsibilities 
for risks 

- Current 

Mitigation 

- Action 
Plans 

- Reaction 
Plans 

- Monitoring 

- Reporting 

- Assurance 

- Review 
Approach 

- KPIs 

The current and target levels of maturity for each area were assessed in 
accordance with five categories, defined at Appendix III: 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

The Risk Maturity Assessment Matrix is at Appendix III and sets out the 
definitions for each level of maturity. It is the intention that the results of 
the assessment assist those charged with governance in the further 
development of an effective and embedded risk management framework.  
Within our report we have identified areas where further development is 
required in order to reach the target maturity levels and have made 
recommendations for improvement within the body of the report. We have 
summarised below the current and target maturity levels, based on our work 
performed and the planned trajectory of progress for the Council. 

Page 87



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

When the previous review was conducted in 2019, the current and target 

maturity assessments were: 

Risk 
Governance 

Risk 
Assessment 

Risk 
Mitigation 

Monitoring 
and 

Reporting 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Current Defined Aware Defined Aware Defined 

Target Enabled Managed Enabled Managed Enabled 

Risk 
Governance 

Risk 
Assessment 

Risk 
Mitigation 

Monitoring 
and 

Reporting 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Current Managed Defined Aware Defined Managed 

Target Enabled Enabled Defined Enabled Enabled 

AREAS OF 
STRENGTH 

 There is a robust system in place to ensure the corporate risk register is
updated and subject to review at least every quarter by senior leadership
and members.

 The SharePoint system allows officers to easily raise concerns to be
considered for addition to the risk register.

 The SharePoint system allows for good visibility of risks recorded on the
corporate risk register.

 The SharePoint system provides automated reminders to risk owners to
ensure updates to the risk register are completed in a timely manner.

 The Council’s risk management process and system is subject to regular
review to consider where improvements to processes can be made.

 There is a clear systematic approach for how risks should be managed
which is clearly communicated within the Risk Management Policy.

AREAS OF 
CONCERN 

 Whilst risks recorded on the corporate risk register are linked to strategic
objectives, no risk mapping takes place to clearly illustrate the
objectives that are exposed to the greatest risk, which can be included
in risk reports to the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee.

 The approach for describing risks as set out in the Risk Management
Policy is not consistently applied to risks on the corporate risk register,
where risk descriptions do not clearly and succinctly set out the risk,
cause and consequence.

 Whilst the Risk Management Policy provides some guidance on how to
apply the risk evaluation matrix, by defining the likelihood scores from
unlikely to definite and the impact scores from negligible to major, there
is no detailed guidance on the specific definition of these terms,
increasing the likelihood that risks will be evaluated inconsistently.

 Mitigating actions are not consistently identified to address risks
recorded on the corporate risk register which have not been mitigated
to beneath the tolerance threshold. There is also no system in place to
monitor the implementation of the actions that have been documented.

 Although risks are identified in Manager’s service plans, there is no
standard process in place for the review and reporting of local risks
recorded within service plans, with each service taking a different
approach.

Page 88



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

CONCLUSION 

 The Council scores above average against the key indicators included
within the report when compared to other Councils, as evidenced in the
graph below. Whilst this indicates that overall the Council’s systems for
risk management are operating effectively, there are still improvements
that can be made to more effectively manage risk across the Council,
particularly within services, where there is less structure with regards to
risk management. Since our review in 2019, the Council has improved its
level of maturity in all areas, except for risk mitigation, which has fallen
from defined to aware over the period, largely due to the inconsistent
documentation of mitigating actions on the corporate risk register and
the absence of a systematic process for monitoring the implementation
of actions that are recorded. If this issue is addressed, and ongoing
efforts to improve the risk management function continue by
implementing the recorded actions, the Council will meet the target
maturity level and align with best practice for risk management.

Page 89



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK MATURITY AGAINST 
THE BDO RISK MATURITY MODEL 

Risk Maturity Assessment - Governance 

1. Strategy and objectives: ✓/ Evaluation 

1.1 
The organisation has clear 
objectives. 

✓

The Council has developed a Corporate Plan for 
2021 -2023. It is divided into four main areas; 
Place, Prosperity and Community and Performance 
and Value under which sit 19 outcomes. Alongside 
this the plan also incorporates eight core values: 

• Have a customer focus

• Be respectful to others

• Act ethically and with integrity

• Be innovative

• Collaborate to deliver

• Be accountable for our actions

• Be open and transparent

• Be ambitious

1.2 
Division / department objectives 
are set and linked to the 
organisation’s objectives. 

✓ 

Each area has its own service plan which is 
developed between the service director and 
manager. The service plan incorporates the key 
objectives the service is aiming to achieve for the 
year, linking back to the four main areas in the 
Corporate Plan. 

2. Tone at the top 

2.1 

The Board have mandated that a 
formal approach be taken to risk 
management and set out why risk 
management is important. 

✓ 

The Council has a Risk Management Policy which 
documents a clear step by step approach for risk 
management, as follows: 

1. Identify Corporate, Service, Project or
Partnership Objectives

2. Identify Risks
3. Assess adequacy of existing controls
4. Assess Inherent Risk Level
5. Identify further mitigating actions 

required
6. Monitor impact of mitigating actions on

residual risk
7. Review and report

The policy also sets out the roles and 
responsibilities of staff to fulfil this approach. 

3. Roles and responsibilities: 

3.1 

Roles and responsibilities for risk 
management have been defined 
centrally and across divisions and 
departments. 

✓ 

Roles and responsibilities for risk management are 
defined within the Risk Management Policy under 
the following categories: 

• Full Council

• Performance, Governance and Audit
Committee

• Corporate Leadership Team

• Risk owners

• Managers

• All staff

Page 90



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

3.2 

Effectiveness in discharging risk 
management responsibilities is 
evaluated as part of individual 
performance review/appraisal. 

 

From our interviews with the corporate risk team 
and service plan owners, we found that whilst 
there were ongoing conversations with risk owners 
to determine how effectively their risks were 
being mitigated, this did not represent a 
systematic performance appraisal process where 
objectives are set and progress formally reviewed 
and documented. 

4. Resources: 

4.1 
Resource requirements have been 
identified and budget allocated. 

✓ 

The Council has developed a dedicated SharePoint 
risk register system for the documentation, 
monitoring and reporting of risk. This process is 
managed by the Performance Specialist, with 
oversight from the Programmes, Performance and 
Governance Manager. 

4.2 
Regular review takes place of 
ongoing resource requirements. ✓ 

Through interviews with the Performance 
Specialist, we found that the Council is continually 
reviewing its SharePoint system to improve 
functionality. 

5. Training: 

5.1 
Training undertaken for managers 
and staff responsible for risk 
management. 

✓/

There is a risk management presentation which is 
available for all staff and included as part of the 
induction pack for new staff. The presentation is 
also available on the intranet for staff to view if 
they need to refresh their knowledge of the 
content. There is no dedicated training 
programme for managers or those with additional 
risk management responsibilities. The Risk 
Management Policy is due to be updated in 
November 2022, at which point the training will 
also be updated. 

5.2 
Training in risk management is 
provided to all staff. 

✓ 

6. Risk Appetite: 

6.1 
A formal risk appetite statement 
has been agreed by the board at 
corporate level 

✓ 

The Risk Management Policy includes a section 
which communicates a brief risk appetite 
statement. However, it also complements this 
with additional narrative throughout the policy, 
including where guidance is provided on the risk 
scoring matrix, which indicates the level of risk 
that is tolerable before it must be escalated for 
management/director consideration 

6.2 
Risk appetite statements are in 
place and within departments. 

✓ 

There are no dedicated risk appetite statements 
for departments. However, the central Risk 
Management Policy is expected to be applied 
consistently across all departments, and as such 
they are expected to apply the central risk 
appetite statement when managing risks. 

7. Risk policy:

Page 91



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

7.1 
A risk management policy is in place 
and has been communicated 
throughout the organisation. 

✓

The Council has a Risk Management Policy that was 
last updated in November 2019 and approved by 
the Performance, Governance and Audit 
Committee. The policy is next due for review in 
November 2022. 

Assessment of maturity for this element 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

Current ✓

Target ✓

Recommendations for improvement – Governance 

1. A systematic process for reviewing how effectively officers are discharging their risk
management responsibilities should be implemented. This should include ensuring all
individuals with risk management responsibilities have specific objectives captured via the
appraisal process, with these being subject to regular review throughout the year, by analysing
the risks the individual is responsible for on the risk register and reviewing how effectively
they are being mitigated.

2. Whilst basic risk management training should be issued to all staff across the Council, enhanced
risk management training should be mandatory for all officers with specific risk management
responsibilities, which should be completed on a rolling 3 yearly cycle to ensure they maintain
the skills necessary to effectively mitigate risk.

Management Response Responsibility and Implementation Date 

1. We will look into how we report
individual risk management as part of
the framework update.

2. This is already in keeping with what we
have done and we can continue to work
to a three year training cycle in the
policy update.

Responsible Individual: 
1. Cheryl Hughes

2. Cheryl Hughes

Implementation Date: 
1. November 2022

2. November 2022

Page 92



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Risk Maturity Assessment – Risk Assessment 

1. Risk Identification: ✓/ Evaluation 

1.1 
Comprehensive process in place for 
systematically identifying risks 
throughout the organisation. 

✓ 

There is an annual process across services where 
service management engage with the service 
director and officers to identify objectives for the 
year and document these on their service plan. 
Risks which could impact the achievement of 
these objectives are identified and also 
documented within the service plan. All risks are 
scored and any which are above the threshold 
must be considered for inclusion on the corporate 
risk register via SharePoint. 

Officers are responsible for staying alert to 
emerging risks whilst discharging their duties 
throughout each year. If an officer believes they 
have identified a risk, they must complete a risk 
report via the SharePoint system, following which 
it is considered for inclusion on to the corporate 
register. 

2. Risk Analysis: 

2.1 Risks are linked to objectives. ✓/

When risks are added to the corporate register 
they are linked to the area of the corporate plan 
that they relate to (Place, Prosperity and 
Community and Performance and Value) and the 
strategic objective which they could impact on. 
However, whilst risks are linked to objectives, 
this information is not used to produce risk maps 
to better understand the Council’s exposure to 
risk in different areas. 

2.2 Risks are clearly described.  

There is a section in the Risk Management Policy 
where detailed guidance is provided on how to 
document and describe a risk using a description, 
cause, consequence format. However, on review 
of the risk register, this is not being applied to 
the risk descriptions, which provide basic 
descriptions without clearly setting out the cause 
and consequence aspects. For example, R8 on the 
corporate risk register states ‘Failure to meet the 
affordable housing need.’ This does not provide 
any information to the reader on the root cause 
of this risk and the consequences should the risk 
materialise. On certain risks, this additional 
detail is included to some degree in the risk 
commentary. However, the commentary section 
is largely used to record updates to the risk, 
making it difficult to identify a more detailed 
description of the risk within the commentary. 

2.3 Risks are assigned a category. ✓ 

The Risk Management Policy sets out different 
categories of risk which are built in to the 
SharePoint system which are applied to risks 
when they are added to the corporate risk 
register. We observed that all risks were assigned 
one of the following categories: 

• Compliance

• Financial

• Operational

• Strategic

3. Risk Evaluation: 

Page 93



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

3.1 
Risks are evaluated based on a 
defined scoring methodology. 

✓/

The Risk Management Policy includes a standard 
5x5 matrix of likelihood vs impact which is 
applied to the assessment of all risks added to the 
corporate risk register and local service plans. 
However, whilst the Risk Management Policy 
provides some guidance on how to apply the risk 
evaluation matrix, by defining the likelihood 
scores from unlikely to definite and the impact 
scores from negligible to major, there is no 
detailed guidance on the specific definition of 
these terms, increasing the likelihood that risks 
will be evaluated inconsistently. An example of 
how this guidance could be expanded is attached 
at appendix II 

3.2 
Regular management challenge of 
the risk evaluations applied. 

✓ 

All new risks submitted via the SharePoint system 
are first subject to review by the Performance 
Specialist. These risks are then added to the risk 
report made to the Quarterly Risk and 
Performance Clinic for consideration and 
challenge of the ratings where appropriate. 

4. Assigning responsibilities for risk: 

4.1 All risks have an owner. ✓ 

At the time of our audit there were 17 risks on 
the corporate risk register, all of which were 
assigned a risk owner. All service plans are owned 
by the relevant service manager and director, so 
all risks are owned locally. 

Assessment of maturity for this element 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

Current ✓

Target ✓

Recommendations for improvement – Risk Assessment 

1. A risk map should be produced to enable the Council to better understand the areas to which
it is exposed to the greatest risk. The risk map should plot each risk and its overall risk score
against the different strategic objectives to see which of these are exposed to the greatest
risk, enabling the Council to better prioritise interventions.

2. All risks on the corporate risk register should be subject to an enhanced one off review to
determine whether their description meets the requirements of the Risk Management Policy
by including the event/hazard, cause and consequence. This should be captured in the risk
title so that it is pulled through to reports made to the Performance, Governance and Audit
Committee. For example, R8 ‘Failure to meet the affordable housing need’ could be amended
to (the cause and consequence included below are for illustrative purposes only on how to
properly record a risk on the risk register, and are not intended to imply what the actual cause
and consequence are):

Event/Hazard

The Council will fail to meet the needs of the community for affordable housing.

Cause

Developers are more frequently paying commuted sums to the Council as opposed to including
affordable housing within developments, with it being increasingly difficult to use the sums to
secure more affordable housing due to the lack of land supply for housing.

Consequence

Page 94



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Failure to meet affordable housing needs could result in an increased level of homelessness 
across the borough 

3. Additional guidance on how to apply the different likelihood and consequence risk scores
should be added to the Risk Management Policy to improve the consistency of scoring on the
register.

Management Response Responsibility and Implementation Date 

1. We will look in to reporting at this level
as part of the balance scorecard.

2. We will complete this exercise as part of
the launch of the new framework.

3. This will be further enhanced as part of
the framework update.

Responsible Individual: 
1. Eloise Howard
2. Paul Dodson
3. Cheryl Hughes

Implementation Date: 
1. March 2023
2. March 2023
3. November 2022

Page 95



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Assessment of maturity for this element 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

Current ✓

Target ✓

Recommendations for improvement – Risk Mitigation 

For all risks where current controls are not successfully reducing the risk score to within the Council’s risk 
appetite, mitigating actions should be identified to further strengthen the controls. These mitigating actions 
should be documented within the SharePoint system and allocated an owner and implementation date. These 
actions should be monitored on an ongoing basis, and action owners should be required to provide updates on 
progress alongside the process for updating risk registers. These actions should be reported to Risk and 
Performance Clinic and Performance, Governance and Audit Committee for discussion and oversight. 

Management Response Responsibility and Implementation Date 

As part of strategy and reporting update, we will 
look to enhance tracking of the mitigating actions 
and include their performance monitoring as part of 
wider performance reporting. 

Responsible Individual: Eloise Howard 

Implementation Date: January 2023 

Risk Maturity Assessment – Risk Mitigation 

 1. Current Mitigation: ✓/ Evaluation 

1.1 
Responses to risks have been selected 
and implemented, having regard to 
the risk appetite. 

✓/

For all 17 risks documented on the corporate risk 
register, controls have been identified to mitigate 
the inherent risk. However, not all controls have 
been successful in mitigating risks over time where 
current risk scores exceed inherent risk scores. 

Controls to mitigate risks identified on local service 
plans are recorded in the comments/mitigating 
actions section. 

2. Action Plans: 

2.1 
Action plans are in place for all risks 
that have not been accepted at the 
current level. 

 

Within the SharePoint system there is a register 
separate to where risks are documented to capture 
mitigating actions. These are linked back to the 
individual risks on the risk register. Our review of the 
17 risks on the register found that actions were only 
documented against eight. Furthermore, our 
interviews with the Performance Specialist found 
that there is currently no embedded process for 
reviewing and monitoring the implementation of 
actions recorded against risk. 

There are mitigating actions captured against risks on 
local service plans. However, these are largely only 
simple statements and are not SMART actions, such 
as within the ‘Strategy, Policy, Communications and 
Commercial’ and ‘Resources’ service plans, where 
example actions include ‘Learn from feedback on 
failed bids’ and ‘Regular monitoring of requirements, 
risks and progress’. There is also no process for 
documenting progress towards implementing these 
actions.  

Page 96



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

Risk Maturity Assessment – Reporting and Review 

1. Monitoring: ✓/ Evaluation 

1.1 
A strategic risk register has been 
populated. 

✓ 

A corporate risk register is maintained using 
SharePoint which is subject to regular update and 
review on a quarterly basis. 

1.2 
Departmental risk registers have 
been populated. 

✓/

Departments across the Council do not have 
dedicated local risk registers. Risks which are of a 
low significance and therefore not required to be 
escalated to the corporate risk register are 
captured on the departmental service plans. 
However, as these are not full risk registers, the 
information recorded is limited to just a risk 
description, score and mitigating action. 

1.3 
Risk registers are reviewed on a 
regular basis. 

✓/

The SharePoint system that is used to maintain the 
corporate risk register sends notifications to risk 
owners when risks are required to be reviewed and 
updated. These updates are initially checked by 
the Performance Specialist to confirm risks are 
updated in a timely manner prior to reporting 
taking place. 

The Risk Management Policy requires owners of 
service plans to manage their risks on an ongoing 
basis. However, it does not provide detailed 
guidance on the minimum expectations for how 
this responsibility should be discharged. Our 
interviews with owners of service plans found that 
this has resulted in different approaches being 
taken to reviewing risks on service plans, with 
some monitoring theirs on a weekly basis, whilst 
another conducted bi-monthly reviews. 

2. Reporting: 

2.1 
Regular reporting on key risks at 
corporate level. 

✓ 

The corporate risk is reported at the Quarterly Risk 
and Performance Clinic and at Quarterly 
Performance, Governance and Audit Committee. 

2.2 
Regular reporting on risks at 
division/department level. 

 

As in 1.3, whilst the Risk Management Policy 
places responsibility for managing local risks on 
service plan owners, there are no documented 
processes in place for the reporting of risks at 
service level. 

2.3 
Decisions based on risk reports are 
fed back. 

✓/

The corporate risk register is subject to a 
systematic reporting process, with feedback on 
discussions being provided back to risk owners. 
However, due to their being no robust and 
consistent reporting process in place across all 
departments and services, there is only limited 
feedback available on local service risks. 

3. Assurance: 

Page 97



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

3.1 
Assurance is provided on the 
effectiveness of the management of 
risks. 

✓/

Due to the robust review and reporting system in 
place for monitoring risks on the corporate risk 
register there is good oversight of risk at this level. 
However, due to the lack of structure around the 
management of risk at departmental level, only 
limited assurance can be provided that these are 
being effectively managed. 

Assessment of maturity for this element 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

Current ✓

Target ✓

Recommendations for improvement – Reporting and Review 

The process for reviewing and reporting local risks within departmental service plans should be 
standardised by setting a minimum expectation within the Risk Management Policy which departmental 
managers should be required to meet. This should include the minimum frequency at which risks within 
service plans should be reviewed, who should be involved in completing these reviews, and where 
updates to risks within service plans should be reported.   

Management Response Responsibility and Implementation Date 

This will be specified in the updated risk 
management framework. 

Responsible Individual: Cheryl Hughes 

Implementation Date: November 2022 

Page 98



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Risk Maturity Assessment – Continuous Improvement 

1. Continuous Improvement: ✓/ Evaluation 

1.1 

The organisation's risk management 
approach and the Board's risk 
appetite are regularly reviewed and 
refined in light of new risk 
information reported. 

✓ 

The Council’s Risk Management Policy is subject 
to routine review every three years. However, 
between these reviews the process is continually 
considered for improvements, with the 
Performance Specialist working with the 
Programmes, Performance and Governance 
Manager and the Risk and Performance Clinic to 
identify areas where the system can be 
improved. 

2. KPIs: 

2.1 

KPIs are used to measure aspects of 
the risk management activity, e.g. 
timeliness of implementation of 
risk responses, number of risks 
materialising or surpassing impact-
likelihood expectations 

• % of risk issues exceeding
defined risk tolerance without
action plans

• Cycle time from discovery of a
control deficiency to risk
acceptance decision

• % of staff having undertaken
advanced risk management
training.

✓/

The Council uses a balanced scorecard to monitor 
a range of KPIs. One of these KPIs relates to 
corporate risk tolerance, where risks on the 
corporate risk register are categorised as below 
tolerance or amber, yellow or red tolerance. 
However, there are no definitions of what these 
terms mean on the report, and no indication of 
what would be required to meet the 
requirements of the KPI. Furthermore, there are 
no other KPIs included, relating to other areas 
such as consistency of mitigating actions being 
recorded on the corporate risk register. 

Assessment of maturity for this element 

Naïve Aware Defined Managed Enabled 

Current ✓

Target ✓

Recommendations for improvement – Continuous Improvement 

The Council should expand its suite of KPIs for risk management, and ensure all indicators are defined, 
including what is required to be within the tolerance of the KPI. See Appendix I for example KPIs that 
should be considered for implementation. 

Management Response Responsibility and Implementation Date 

We will consider this and add into the wider 
balance scorecard reporting as part of the new 
strategy launch. 

Responsible Individual: Eloise Howard 

Implementation Date: March 2023 

Page 99



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX I – EXAMPLE KPIS 

• Timeliness of implementation of risk responses

• Percentage of risks operating at the target level

• The overall effectiveness of risk management (current risk versus target risk)

• Number of risks materialising or surpassing impact-likelihood expectations

• % of risk issues exceeding defined risk tolerance without action plans

• Cycle time from discovery of a control deficiency to risk acceptance decision

• % of staff having undertaken risk management training

• SMT must attend at least 50% of the XXX governance meetings

• Heads of Departments must attend at least 75% of the XXX Council/Committee meetings

and departmental governance group meetings and ensure that a designated deputy

attends in their absence

Page 100



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX II – RISK EVALUATION GUIDANCE 

IMPACT 

Score Finance Service Reputation 

1 Less than £10,000 No or very little impact 
on services. 

Some negative 
publicity. 

2 £10,000 to £50,000 Disruption of services 
causing inconvenience. 
May cause 
efficiency/effectiveness 
problems. 

Regular negative 
publicity. 

3 £50,000 to £500,000 Loss of service for a 
significant period (less 
than a month). 

Loss of public 
confidence, protest 
action. 

4 £500,000 to £3.5m Loss of services to such 
an extent that effects 
on the community will 
be measurable. 

Punitive action by 
reguators requiring 
significant 
organisational 
changes. 

5 £3.5m plus Permanent loss of a 
significant service. 
Threatens the viability 
of the organisation. 

Damage to such an 
extent that the 
organisation must 
cease to exist as it. 

LIKELIHOOD 

Score 1 2 3 4 5 

Definition Could 
happen, but 
probably 
never will. 

Not likely to 
occur under 
normal 
circumstances. 

May occur 
at some 
time. 

Expected to 
occur at 
some time. 

Expected to 
occur 
regularly 
under normal 
circumstances 
or a single 
irreparable 
occurrence. 

Page 101



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX III – RISK MATURITY ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Risk Governance 
Risk Identification and 

Assessment 
Risk Mitigation and Treatment Risk Reporting and Review Continuous Improvement 

Enabled 

Risk management and internal 

control is fully embedded into 

operations. All parties play 

their part and have a share of 

accountability for managing 

risk in line with their 

responsibility for the 

achievement of objectives. 

There are processes for 

identifying and assessing risks 

and opportunities on a 

continuous basis. Risks are 

assessed to ensure consensus 

about the appropriate level of 

control, monitoring and 

reporting to carry out. Risk 

information is documented in a 

risk register.  

Responses to the risks have 

been selected and 

implemented. There are 

processes for evaluating risks 

and responses implemented. 

The level of residual risk after 

applying mitigation techniques 

is accepted by the organisation, 

or further mitigations have 

been planned. 

High quality, accurate and 

timely information is available 

to operational management and 

directors. The board reviews the 

risk management strategy, 

policy and approach on a regular 

basis, e.g. annually, and reviews 

key risks, emergent and new 

risks, and action plans on a 

regular basis, e.g. quarterly.  

The organisational performance 

management framework and reward 

structure drives improvements in risk 

management. Risk management is a 

management competency. Management 

assurance is provided on the effectiveness 

of their risk management on a regular basis. 

Managed 

Risk management objectives 

are defined and management 

are trained in risk management 

techniques. Risk management is 

written into the performance 

expectations of managers. 

Management and executive 

level responsibilities for key 

risks have been allocated. 

There are clear links between 

objectives and risks at all 

levels. Risk information is 

documented in a risk register. 

The organisation’s risk appetite 

is used in the scoring system for 

assessing risks. All significant 

projects are routinely assessed 

for risk. 

There is clarity over the risk 

level that is accepted within 

the organisation’s risk appetite. 

Risk responses appropriate to 

satisfy the risk appetite of the 

organisation have been 

selected and implemented.  

The board reviews key risks, 

emergent and new risks, and 

action plans on a regular basis, 

e.g. quarterly. It reviews the 

risk management strategy, 

policy and approach on a regular 

basis, e.g. annually. Directors 

require interim updates from 

delegated managers on 

individual risks which they have 

personal responsibility. 

The organisation’s risk management 

approach and the Board’s risk appetite are 

regularly reviewed and refined in light of 

new risk information reported. Management 

assurance is provided on the effectiveness 

of their risk management on an ad hoc basis. 

The resources used in risk management 

become quantifiably cost effective. KPIs are 

set to improve certain aspects of the risk 

management activity, e.g. timeliness of 

implementation of risk responses, number 

of risks materialising or surpassing impact-

likelihood expectations. 

P
age 102



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

Defined 

A risk strategy and policies are 

in place and communicated. 

The level of risk-taking that the 

organisation will accept is 

defined and understood in some 

parts of the organisation, and it 

is used to consider the most 

appropriate responses to the 

management of identified risks. 

Management and executive 

level responsibilities for key 

risks have been allocated. 

There are processes for 

identifying and assessing risks 

and opportunities in some parts 

of the organisation but not 

consistently applied in all. All 

risks identified have been 

assessed with a defined scoring 

system. Risk information is 

brought together for some parts 

of the organisation. Most 

projects are assessed for risk. 

Management in some parts of 

the organisation are familiar 

with, and able to distinguish 

between, the different options 

available in responding to risks 

to select the best response in 

the interest of the organisation. 

Management have set up 

methods to monitor the proper 

operation of key processes, 

responses, and action plans. 

Management report risks to 

directors where responses have 

not managed the risks to a level 

acceptable to the board. 

The Board gets minimal assurance on the 

effectiveness of risk management. 

Aware 

There is a scattered, silo-based 

approach to risk management. 

The vision, commitment and 

ownership of risk management 

have been documented. 

However, the organisation is 

reliant on a few key people for 

the knowledge, skills and the 

practice of risk management 

activities on a day-to-day basis. 

A limited number of managers 

are trained in risk management 

techniques. There are 

processes for identifying and 

assessing risks and 

opportunities, but these are not 

fully comprehensive or 

implemented. There is no 

consistent scoring system for 

assessing risks. Risk information 

is not fully documented. 

Some responses to the risks 

have been selected and 

implemented by management 

according to their own 

perception of risk appetite in 

the absence of a board-

approved appetite for risk. 

There are some monitoring 

processes and ad hoc reviews by 

some managers on risk 

management activities. 

Management does not assure the Board on 

the effectiveness of risk management. 

Naive 

No formal approach developed 

for risk management. No formal 

consideration of risks to 

business objectives, or clear 

ownership, accountability and 

responsibility for the 

management of key risks. 

Processes for identifying and 

evaluating risks and responses 

are not defined. Risks have not 

been identified nor collated. 

There is no consistent scoring 

system for assessing risks. 

Responses to the risks have not 

been designed or implemented. 

There are no monitoring 

processes or regular reviews of 

risk management. 

Management does not assure the Board on 

the effectiveness of risk management. 

P
age 103



 MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX IV – TERMS OF REFERENCE 

KEY RISKS 

Based upon the risk assessment undertaken during the development of the internal audit operational 
plan, through discussions with management, and our collective audit knowledge and understanding 
the potential key risks associated with the area under review are: 

 There is not a clear understanding of risk within the Council

 The risks on the risk registers do not correspond to those actually facing the Council

 Risks are not reviewed on a regular basis and appropriate assurance and controls assigned to them

 Escalation and management review of risks is insufficient, and mitigating actions are ineffective.

SCOPE & 
APPROACH 

The Risk Maturity Assessment will cover the following elements of risk management: 

 Governance

 Identification and assessment

 Mitigation and treatment

 Reporting and review

 Continuous improvement.

Based on documentary review and interviews with key staff, each element will be judged on a five-
part scale between ‘naïve’ and ‘enabled’, as outlined in the BDO Risk Maturity matrix in Appendix 1. 

The scope of the review is limited to the areas documented under the scope and approach. All other 
areas are considered outside of the scope of this review. However, Internal Audit will bring to the 
attention of management any points relating to other areas that come to their attention during the 
course of the audit. We assume for the purposes of estimating the number of days of audit work that 
there is one control environment, and that we will be providing assurance over controls in this 
environment. If this is not the case, our estimate of audit days may not be accurate. 

It is intended that this audit will be completed through a combination of remote working and onsite 
meetings and testing, based upon the most effective way of carrying out the work. 

In delivering this review BDO may need to observe and test confidential or personal identifiable data 
to ascertain the effective operation of controls in place. The organisation shall only provide the Shared 
Personal Data to BDO using secure methods as agreed between the parties. BDO will utilise the data 
in line with the General Data Protection Regulations 2016 (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 1998, 
and shall only share Personal Data on an anonymised basis and only where necessary. 

Page 104



 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GREG RUBINS 

greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general terms and should 
be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied upon to cover specific situations 
and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon the information contained therein without 
obtaining specific professional advice. Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the 
context of your particular circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept 
or assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by 
anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number OC305127, 
is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of 
the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members’ names is open to 
inspection at our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and 
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, is licensed 
to operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms.  

© June 2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

www.bdo.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 105

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
JULY 2022 

Design Opinion Substantial 

Design Effectiveness Moderate 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6g



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................. 109 

DETAILED FINDINGS .................................................................... 111 

OBSERVATIONS .......................................................................... 114 

APPENDIX I – DEFINITIONS ............................................................. 115 

APPENDIX II - TERMS OF REFERENCE ................................................ 116 

DISTRIBUTION 

Paul Dodson Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance and 
Returning Office 

Cheryl Hughes Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager 

BDO LLP APPRECIATES THE TIME PROVIDED BY ALL THE INDIVIDUALS INVOLVED IN THIS REVIEW 
AND WOULD LIKE TO THANK THEM FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE AND COOPERATION. 

REPORT STATUS 

Auditors: Freya Beard – Senior Internal Auditor 

Dates work performed: 03/05/2022 - 17/06/2022 

Draft report issued: 22 June 2022 

Final report issued: 5 July 2022 

Page 108



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BAF REFERENCE: 

Design Opinion Substantial 
Design 
Effectiveness 

Moderate 

Recommendations 

SCOPE 

BACKGROUND 

An annual review of corporate governance feeds into the production of the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement. Effective corporate governance 
should equip the Council with a mechanism for ensuring that the focus of 
activities supports the achievement of its strategic aims. Good corporate 
governance extends from policy setting through to control objectives and is 
based on the people, ethos and culture established within the organisation. 
Governance processes can be more narrowly defined as comprising 
committee structures, schemes of delegation, higher level strategies, 
policies and processes.  

AREAS REVIEWED 

The purpose of this review was to assess the operation of the newly 
established Committee Structure to assess whether it is line with best 
practice and delivering the outcomes required by the district. In order to 
provide an opinion we considered whether the Council had taken account of 
the LGA’s Model Councillor Code of Conduct and integrated the updated 
declarations of interest guidance into their processes, assessed the 
onboarding and training provisions for Members and Chairs, the scrutiny of 
the Planning Advisory Service report and the effectiveness of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

We interviewed the Programmes, Performance and Governance manager 
and the Lead Legal Specialist and Monitoring Officer to understand the 
Committee Structure and processes in place. We then reviewed the detailed 
minutes, reports and terms of reference related to each of the areas noted 
above to observe how the structure operates and evaluated the 
effectiveness of this. We also obtained the onboarding process map and 
copies of the training materials and attendance records as evidence. 

AREAS OF 
STRENGTH 

Our review noted the following areas of strength: 

 The LGA’s Model Councillor Code of Conduct had been reviewed by the
Council, with a report presented to the Joint Standards Committee (JSC)
in February 2022 who recommended adopting it into Council practice
(see observational finding below)

 We confirmed there is an adequate process in place regarding the current
declarations of interest procedure and this is covered as part of the
onboarding process

 A Members onboarding process map shows the detailed timeline of the
induction process, separated by the responsible department or
individual; this includes access to an E-Learning portal which we have
reviewed and verified members are provided with adequate information

0 2 0 

Page 109



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

about the Code of Conduct, protocol on Member-Officer relations, 
declarations of interest and relevant workbooks 

 Compulsory training is provided on an annual basis to cover planning and
for members new to licensing, with refresher training after 3 years. In
both of these cases, the Council implement sanctions in the form of not
being able to vote on planning decisions or not being included in calls to
sit on the sub-committee should training not be completed

 Annual Chairman training is provided to all Chairs and Vice Chairs. We
have reviewed the training materials which provide detailed training
covering the process from pre- to post-meeting. Additional information
was added to the 2022/23 training and the sessions include information
on how to handle committee disruption and difficult members. Ongoing
support is offered from the Committee Clerk throughout the year.
Although training is not compulsory there was a 100% attendance rate at
the recent May 2022 training session (an improvement from 85% in
2021/22)

 There is a well-established Overview & Scrutiny Committee in place. In
August 2021 a new working group for the committee was established.
Both the main Committee and working group were politically balanced
and we confirmed to the current membership that members involved do
not also sit on the Strategy & Resources or Performance Committees,
thereby ensuring sufficient independence. The working group for this
municipal year will be formed in July when they next meet. In 2021/22
a total of six formal meetings were held by the Committee and we
observed the operations of the group by reviewing the meeting minutes
and reports associated with these. There was evidence of adequate
consideration and scrutiny being given to all items presented before
making a decision as to whether to add them to the annual work plan.

AREAS OF 
CONCERN 

 The Planning Advisory Service report which recommended improvements
to the Committee operations and structure was rejected by Council
without sufficient scrutiny (Finding 1 - Medium)

 Compulsory training sessions provided on scrutiny were only attended by
48% of Members (Finding 2 - Medium)

We have also included an observational finding to note that although the 
new Code of Conduct has been reviewed by the Council and approved by 
JSC, it has been agreed it should be adopted in line with Essex County 
Council who had not actioned this at the time of our audit. The Council 
should therefore continue to be mindful of this and ensure it is implemented 
by the agreed date of November 2022.  

CONCLUSION 

 In conclusion, our review noted a number of areas of good practice,
including the onboarding and induction process, the training and support
provided to Chairs and the structure and functioning of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

 We have raised two findings in relation to the attendance of training and
the scrutiny and review of the Planning Advisory Service report by
Council and thereby conclude a substantial design opinion and moderate
operational effectiveness opinion.

Page 110



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS 

1 FINDING TITLE 

TOR Risk: The recent report from the Planning Advisory Service has not been 
sufficiently scrutinised and reviewed 

Significance 

FINDING 

In March 2021, the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) drafted a Virtual Planning Committee 
Review document for the Council. The report identified that the Council’s current structure 
of having four separate planning committees (three area and one district) is not best 
practice and can result in higher resourcing costs and workload for Councillors to service 
multiple committees. It notes there is a challenge to applying district wide policies 
consistently across multiple committees and members can struggle to separate their role 
as a ward member representing their residents to their role on the Planning Committee 
(which involves making potentially difficult decisions on behalf of the whole district).  

The report also found that the current process of the Chair automatically moving the 
Officers recommendation on a case and for it to be immediately seconded was limiting the 
ability to have an open discussion about the merits of the application before a motion 
emerges; they believe this may have contributed to the sometimes confrontational 
approach between Members and Officers. They state Members at times appear to read pre 
prepared statements before they have heard any debate, therefore opening them up to 
challenge that they have made their decisions before listening to the information and 
debates. The report highlighted this approach differs from how planning committees usually 
operate in other areas. 

The PAS report was received by the Corporate Governance Working Group (CGWG) who met 
in July 2021 to produce a summary report of the findings and recommended changes 
Council, which included: 

• Council's Solicitor attending Committee meetings to offer legal advice when
decisions are being made

• Changing the practice of Chairs moving Officers' recommendation and having it
seconded at the start of the meeting, instead allowing general discussion before
putting motions up from debate

• An electronic voting system

• Scheme of compulsory training for all Members - including process for consideration
of particular types of application, policy driven decisions, difference between being
representative of Ward and a Councillor in terms of planning decisions and
predetermination/bias

• Encourage Members to discuss concerns about applications with officers prior to
public meetings

• Review of the current multiple committee arrangement, high number of committee
members and scheme of delegation

The CGWG report included an analysis of the cost savings the Council could benefit from by 
adopting a single committee structure, as well as highlighting that it would allow for legal 
presence at every meeting, which is not feasible under the current structure. A Terms of 
Reference for the proposed District Planning Committee was also drafted by the working 
group.  

Page 111



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

In September 2021 Council received the paper for consideration and we have reviewed the 
meeting minutes of their discussion. They noted that the majority of the recommendations 
were operational and procedural matters, however, the removal of the multiple Planning 
Committees would require constitutional amendments and an updated ToR for the District 
Planning Committee (which had been drafted and attached). The minutes note there was a 
lengthy debate regarding the move from three Area Planning Committees to one single 
Planning Committee, they note there was some support for this, however, concern was 
raised particularly in respect of representing local residents. One Councillor proposed the 
Council did not accept the one Planning Committee option and retain the current three 
committee structure, stating they were important to Members and Council democracy; this 
proposal was then seconded. It goes on to state 'further debate ensued', and as a result it 
was proposed the item be withdrawn and be brought back with further information in 2022 
but this is yet to be done. Voting was then held on the proposal to reject the paper, with 
12 voting in favour of the rejection and 7 voting against (with one Councillor abstaining). It 
was therefore declared as resolved - "the Council retains the three Area Planning 
Committees and rejects the proposal for one Planning Committee".  

However, the minutes do not make any reference to the other five recommendations, 
focusing purely on the recommendation to move to one committee and basing their decision 
to reject the paper on this. The report and appendix provided to Council give detailed 
information about the PAS report findings, cost savings, benefits in terms of best practice 
and having legal presence, how these would work operationally and proposed ToR for the 
updated District Planning Committee. The minutes behind the decision to reject do not 
make reference to these details, therefore there is insufficient evidence to show that the 
report was sufficiently scrutinised and considered in full.  

As the Council has not been able to move forwards with the recommendations of the PAS 
report, there is a risk that the Planning Committees are continuing to operate outside best 
practice, with the absence of legal presence and potential further Member-Officer tension. 

RECOMMENDATION 

A. The report from the CGWG should be reconsidered by the Council. If the Council is 
unwilling to accept the full recommendations at this time it should be considered 
whether separate voting be done on the recommendations of the report, to allow 
adoption of some of the other five improvements in the absence of the full report 
being approved.  

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

The governance issues and wider budget concerns means we will do an urgent review and 
report for council to take back the CGWG points.  

Responsible Officer: Cheryl Hughes/ Paul Dodson 

Implementation Date: October 2022 

Page 112



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

2 FINDING TITLE 

TOR Risk: Member’s induction training and the on-boarding process is not sufficient 

for them to fulfil their roles 

Significance 

FINDING 

We enquired about the training provisions in place for Members and obtained a copy of the 
training schedule for 2021/22, as well as the attendance rates for sessions that had been 
agreed as mandatory. 

We were advised that Scrutiny training is provided by the LGA (Local Government 
Association) and for 2021/22 this was run over two sessions. Of the 31 Members at the time 
only 15 (48%) were able to attend the latest training in full. Unlike the compulsory training 
that was provided in relation to planning and licensing, we understand the Council is not 
able to enforce attendance or implement sanctions if Members do not attend, which 
therefore contributes to the lower attendance rate.  

The LGA note that scrutiny will take place within committees to identify where 
improvements need to be made. Whichever governance system a Council operates, scrutiny 
is an essential part of ensuring that local government remains transparent, accountable and 
open, resulting in improved public policies and services. 

There is a risk that Members are not receiving sufficient training to carry out their roles 
effectively due to low attendance at training sessions.    

RECOMMENDATION 

A. The Council should continue to remind Members of the importance of completing 
regular training, which for key areas such as Planning, Licensing and Scrutiny should 
be on an annual basis 

B. Due to Scrutiny training being considered mandatory, the Council should assess if it 
is appropriate to remove Councillors from committees where they have not yet 
completed the necessary scrutiny training, similar to those who do not attend 
Planning and Licensing training who have their roles reduced and are temporarily 
prevented from voting on certain items.  

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

A. Officers will endeavour to communicate and promote training. As part of the May 
2023 elections and any new Member onboarding we will also highlight this 
expectation as part of the onboarding process  

B. This recommendation will be reported back to the CGWG upon acceptance of the 
report, for detailed consideration and recommendation 

Responsible Officer: Cheryl Hughes 

Implementation Date: Jan 2023 

Page 113



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

OBSERVATIONS 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

We considered whether the latest LGA Code of Conduct had been reviewed and adopted by 
the Council, with particular focus on the updated declarations of interest process. The new 
code has been updated from the previous 2016 version to be written in the first person, 
include details on social media and confidentiality, the duty to comply with any sanction 
imposed and strengthen declarations of interest by including relatives and close associates 
(where previously only spouses/civil partners and co-habitees were required). The LGA have 
confirmed they will be undertaking annual reviews of the Code to ensure it continues to be 
fit for purpose.  

We confirmed that the Council have obtained and reviewed the latest Code of Conduct and 
noted the changes required to the Council's declarations of interest process. The new Model 
Code of Conduct was considered by the Joint Standards Committee (JSC) in February 2022, 
with them recommending it be adopted by the Council. We have seen a copy of the report 
presented for consideration and verified agreement to meeting minutes.  

We understand this has not yet been actioned as, due to some Councillors having joint roles, 
management are looking to co-ordinate the adoption of the code with Essex County Council. 
Essex had originally planned to bring it in for November 2022 but this may occur earlier and 
the Council will look to align its adoption with theirs in that case.  

Page 114



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

 

APPENDIX I – DEFINITIONS 

LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE 

DESIGN OF INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK OPERATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

DESIGN 
OPINION 

FINDINGS 
FROM REVIEW 

EFFECTIVENESS 
OPINION 

Substantial  Appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks. 

There is a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives. 

No, or only minor, 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

The controls that are 
in place are being 
consistently applied. 

Moderate  In the main there 
are appropriate 
procedures and 
controls in place to 
mitigate the key 
risks reviewed albeit 
with some that are 
not fully effective. 

Generally, a sound 
system of internal 
control designed to 
achieve system 
objectives with some 
exceptions. 

A small number of 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. 

Evidence of non-
compliance with 
some controls, that 
may put some of the 
system objectives at 
risk.  

Limited  A number of 
significant gaps 
identified in the 
procedures and 
controls in key 
areas. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

System of internal 
controls is weakened 
with system 
objectives at risk of 
not being achieved. 

A number of 
reoccurring 
exceptions found in 
testing of the 
procedures and 
controls. Where 
practical, efforts 
should be made to 
address in-year. 

Non-compliance with 
key procedures and 
controls places the 
system objectives at 
risk. 

No  For all risk areas 
there are significant 
gaps in the 
procedures and 
controls. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Poor system of 
internal control. 

Due to absence of 
effective controls 
and procedures, no 
reliance can be 
placed on their 
operation. Failure to 
address in-year 
affects the quality of 
the organisation’s 
overall internal 
control framework. 

Non-compliance 
and/or compliance 
with inadequate 
controls. 

RECOMMENDATION SIGNIFICANCE 

High  A weakness where there is substantial risk of loss, fraud, impropriety, poor value for money, or 
failure to achieve organisational objectives. Such risk could lead to an adverse impact on the 
business. Remedial action must be taken urgently. 

Medium  A weakness in control which, although not fundamental, relates to shortcomings which expose 
individual business systems to a less immediate level of threatening risk or poor value for money. 
Such a risk could impact on operational objectives and should be of concern to senior 
management and requires prompt specific action. 

Low  Areas that individually have no significant impact, but where management would benefit from 
improved controls and/or have the opportunity to achieve greater effectiveness and/or 
efficiency. 

Page 115



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL| 

APPENDIX II - TERMS OF REFERENCE 

KEY RISKS 

Based upon the risk assessment undertaken during the development of the internal audit operational 
plan, through discussions with management, and our collective audit knowledge and understanding 
the potential key risks associated with the area under review are: 

 The Council have not taken into account the LGA’s Model Councillor Code of Conduct and looked
to integrate aspects into their processes such as declarations of interest

 Member’s induction training and the on-boarding process is not sufficient for them to fulfil their
roles

 Chairs of Groups and Committees are not equipped with the relevant skills to fulfil their roles

 The recent report from the Planning Advisory Service has not been sufficiently scrutinised and
reviewed

 The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is unclear with a lack of formalised
arrangements in place for establishing work plans

SCOPE & 
APPROACH 

The following areas will be covered as part of this review: 

 Member’s inductions as well as ongoing development training to ensure they are equipped with
the relevant skills to complete all aspects of their roles

 Steps taken by the Council following the LGA’s issuance of updated guidance regarding Councillor
Code of Conduct

 Process for the collation and renewal of declarations of interest to ensure robust practices

 The Planning Advisory Service report and where this was reviewed and discussed to ensure
sufficient oversight

 Process for establishing work plans for Overview and Scrutiny as well as it’s membership to ensure
fair and equitable practices are in place

The scope of the review is limited to the areas documented under the scope and approach. All other 
areas are considered outside of the scope of this review. However, Internal Audit will bring to the 
attention of management any points relating to other areas that come to their attention during the 
course of the audit.  

We assume for the purposes of estimating the number of days of audit work that there is one control 
environment, and that we will be providing assurance over controls in this environment. If this is 
not the case, our estimate of audit days may not be accurate. 

It is intended that this audit will be completed through a combination of remote working and onsite 
meetings and testing, based upon the most effective way of carrying out the work. 

In delivering this review BDO may need to observe and test confidential or personal identifiable data 
to ascertain the effective operation of controls in place. The organisation shall only provide the 
Shared Personal Data to BDO using secure methods as agreed between the parties. BDO will utilise 
the data in line with the General Data Protection Regulations 2016 (GDPR) and the Data Protection 
Act 1998 and shall only share Personal Data on an anonymised basis and only where necessary. 

Page 116



 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION: 

GREG RUBINS 

greg.rubins@bdo.co.uk 

This publication has been carefully prepared, but it has been written in general terms and should 
be seen as broad guidance only. The publication cannot be relied upon to cover specific situations 
and you should not act, or refrain from acting, upon the information contained therein without 
obtaining specific professional advice. Please contact BDO LLP to discuss these matters in the 
context of your particular circumstances. BDO LLP, its partners, employees and agents do not accept 
or assume any liability or duty of care for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by 
anyone in reliance on the information in this publication or for any decision based on it. 

BDO LLP, a UK limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number OC305127, 
is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of 
the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members’ names is open to 
inspection at our registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and 
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct investment business.  

BDO is the brand name of the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.  

BDO Northern Ireland, a partnership formed in and under the laws of Northern Ireland, is licensed 
to operate within the international BDO network of independent member firms.  

© June 2022 BDO LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

www.bdo.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 117

http://www.bdo.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
21 JULY 2022 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT (IFS) 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 The purpose of this report is to provide Members of the Performance. Governance 1.1

and Audit Committee (PGA) with an update on the monitoring of Section 106 
planning obligations and to seek approval of the Maldon District Infrastructure 
Funding Statement for the financial year 2021/22, in accordance with the Council’s 
legal duties. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
(i) That the Committee considers the update on Section 106 planning 

obligations. 
 

(ii) That the Committee approves the Maldon District Council Infrastructure 
Funding Statement for the financial year 2021 - 2022 for publication as set out 
in APPENDIX 1. 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
3.1 As set out in the detail of APPENDIX 1 of this paper the following funds were 

received and spent in regard to S106 planning obligations during the financial year 
2021 - 2022. 

Funding received in 2021/22 £167,435.89 

Funding Spent in 2021/22 £63,058.45 

 
3.2 As of 31 March 2022 the Council is expecting £1,053,314.40 to be remitted from 

developers for infrastructure across the District.  The triggers to collect the funding 
associated with the S106 agreements are being monitored in association with the 
function of monitoring housing commencements and completions in the District and 
once these triggers are met, the funding is being invoiced. 

 
3.3 During the financial year 2021 – 2022 the Council did not have to remit back to 

developers any funding because the clawback date within the S106 agreements had 
been met without spending the relevant funding. 

 
3.4 It is important to note that S106 contributions may only be spent on new facilities or 

improvements to facilities where the new development has, at least in part, 
contributed to the need for that facility or will have an impact on existing facilities.  
This means that funding will normally be invested in facilities based in the same 

Page 119

Agenda Item 7



locality or catchment area in which the contributing development is located unless it 
is contributing to the funding of strategic infrastructure. 

 
3.5 The IFS only relates to S106 obligations for which Maldon District Council is legally 

responsible for ensuring compliance. It does not cover: 
 

a. Where Essex County Council (ECC) is the Local Planning Authority (LPA) 
(Minerals and Waste Applications); and/or  

b. Where MDC determined the planning application, but where ECC is signatory of 
the S106 to the effect that it is directly responsible for compliance of its 
contributions; and/or  

c. Section 278 highway work agreements between developers and ECC. 
 
Appendix A of the IFS sets out the details of the ECC`s S106 Funding details for 
information only. 

 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 In light of the report above and the matters before it, the PGA Committee has the 4.1

following options: 
 

 Option 1 – It can discuss the report and accept the recommendations set out in 4.2
Section 2 of this report. 
 

 Option 2 – The Committee can discuss the report and partially accept the 4.3
recommendations.  It could seek officers to make amendments to the IFS to address 
any issues which the Committee raises as a concern.  If the Committee is not minded 
to approve the IFS, it will then have to delegate the final approval of an updated 
version to the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance, in consultation 
with the Chairman of the PGA Committee. 

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
 The Strategic Themes of Place seeks to ensure that the council can demonstrate that 5.1

it has tried to secure investment in the District’s infrastructure alongside 
development. 

 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – Monitoring S106 agreements ensures that financial 

contributions are remitted in an effective and efficient way and they are then 
available to spend on infrastructure which will help the residents/businesses 
of Maldon District. 

 
(ii) Impact on Equalities – None.  The IFS is a legal statement, not a policy/ 

service.  The LDP 2017 and LDP Review are subject to the provisions of the 
Equality Act 2010 and the council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty 
in its decision-making.  

 
(iii) Impact on Risk – Failure to adequately monitor S106 contributions and the 

development that they are secured from could result in delayed payments or 
monies needing to be returned to developers.  Failure to publish an IFS by the 
end of December each year would result in the council failing its legal duties 
in this regard. 

Page 120



 
(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – Failure to adequately monitor S106 

contributions and the development that they are secured from could result in 
delayed payments or monies needing to be returned to developers. 
 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – Monitoring S106 and preparing the IFS is 
undertaken by the Planning Policy Team.  This decision does not impact on 
this resource. 
 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – S106 agreements are a legal mechanism to 
secure obligations to mitigate the impact of development in the District, which 
could include payments that can mitigate any harm on the environment with 
investment in related opportunities. 
 

(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities – S106 agreements are a legal 
mechanism to secure obligations to mitigate the impact of development in the 
District, which could include payments that can mitigate any harm on 
communities with investment in related opportunities. 
 

Background Papers:  
 
Enquiries to: Anne Altoft-Shorland – Lead Specialist Local Plans and Implementation 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

 

MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

INFRASTRUCTURE 
FUNDING 
STATEMENT 
2021/22 (Updated) 

  

1st April 2022 
 

Page 123



APPENDIX 1 

Contents 
1.0 Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 2 

2.0  Section 106 Income for 2021/22 .......................................................................................... 3 

3.0 Section 106 Expenditure for 2021/22 ................................................................................... 3 

4.0 Total Funding Negotiated, Received and Spent Since 1992 ............................................... 5 

5.0 Affordable Homes ................................................................................................................. 8 

6.0 Governance .......................................................................................................................... 9 

Appendix A – Essex County Council Approximate S106 Funding Details .................................... 10 

 

  

Page 124



APPENDIX 1 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 Government guidance requires Maldon District Council to produce a yearly 

Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) not later than 31 December each year.  The 

Council last produced an IFS in December 2021 but sees the advantages of 

realigning its statements to the end of each financial year.  This is so that it is easier 

to understand in the context of the District and aligns with the Council’s own financial 

and development monitoring systems.  This report therefore relates to the financial 

year 2021/2022. 

1.2 Planning Obligations or S106 agreements are legal agreements entered into with 

developers and landowners to mitigate the impacts of a development proposal; they 

are also called Developer Contributions.  Planning obligations can be agreed to 

mitigate the impact of unacceptable development to make it acceptable in planning 

terms.  However, planning obligations must meet the following three legal tests if they 

are to constitute a reason to grant planning permission. 

 necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

 directly related to the development; 

 and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

1.3 Local authorities can, in turn, decide whether to set a Community Infrastructure Levy 

(CIL) for their area, which is a fixed charge levied on new development to help fund 

required infrastructure.  At the present time Maldon District Council does not operate 

a CIL Charging Schedule, so the IFS will only be reporting on S106 obligations. 

1.4  Income from developer contributions is used to help fund the infrastructure needed 

alongside new development and this helps to maximise the benefits and 

opportunities from growth in the District.  Infrastructure includes the delivery of 

affordable homes and other community facilities such as play parks, open space and 

youth facilities.  The district also negotiates in conjunction with the Mid Essex NHS 

Clinical Commissioning Group to achieve contributions towards health infrastructure 

improvements. 

1.5 Essex County Council are responsible for collecting planning obligations for some of 

the other elements of the District’s infrastructure such as: 

 Early learning and primary schools 

 Secondary schools 

 Highway improvements1 

 Transport planning 

 Improvements to cycling and walking routes – sometimes shared with Maldon 

District Council 

Essex County Council are responsible for producing their own Infrastructure Funding 

Statement for anything which they collect and spend directly.  Set out at Appendix A 

for information only regarding Essex County Councils S106 funding for Maldon 

District. 

                                                             
1
 Via Section 278 Agreements 

Page 125



APPENDIX 1 

1.6 Set out at Appendix B are details of all the S106 agreements relating to Maldon 

District. 

 

2.0  Section 106 Income for 2021/22 
 

2.1  S106 agreement income is collected with a view to delivering Maldon District`s 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan2, which accompanies the 2017 approved Maldon District 

Local Development Plan (LDP).  The LDP can be found: www.maldon.gov.uk/ldp. 

Set out below is the total amount of funding received into the Council for the financial 

year 2021/22. 

 

 

Purpose Received Amount 

Affordable Housing £44,850 

Youth Facilities £107,058.82 

S106 Monitoring £15,527.69 

                                                             
2
 https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/9810/infrastructure_delivery 

Page 126

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/ldp
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/9810/infrastructure_delivery


APPENDIX 1 

  

TOTAL £167,435.89 

3.0 Section 106 Expenditure for 2021/22 
 

3.1 The Council holds the funding from S106 agreements until it is either called for by a 

third-party organisation that needs it to invest in infrastructure within their control, or 

the Council is in a position to spend the funding directly; this would normally be when 

all the contributions have been collected.  The Council does not have freedom over 

where this funding can be spent.  The funding can only be spent on projects if they 

align with the terms of the relevant legal agreements. 

Set out below is the total amount of S106 funding spent during the financial year 

2021/22. 

 

 

  

Page 127



APPENDIX 1 

Purpose 
Amount 

Spent 

Expenditure Purpose 

Open Space 

(Allotment) 
£8,000.00 

Passed to Burnham Town Council for investment in 

allotments 

Open 

Space/Ecology 
£49,808.45 

To be spent within the Blue House Farm Nature 

Reserve in North Fambridge 

Affordable 

Housing 
£5,250.00 

Spent on preliminary investigations/valuations of 

land for affordable housing development in the 

District.  

TOTAL £63,058.45  

 

4.0 Total Funding Negotiated, Received and Spent 
Since 1992 
 

4.1 The Council has, since 1992, negotiated a substantial amount of funding through 

S106 agreements and this section sets out how much has been negotiated, how 

much has been received and how much has been spent.  It also sets out for what 

purpose that funding has been used for. 

Set out below is the total amount of funding negotiated since 1992 compared with the 

total amount of funding received to date. 

 

 

 

  

Page 128



APPENDIX 1 

Purpose Total Amount 
Negotiated 

Amount Received 

Affordable Housing £805,622.72 £697,622.72 

Cycle/Footway 
Improvements 

£16,000.00 £16,000.00 

Ecology inc 1 x RAMS £150,478.40 £0.00 

Health £1,223,150.53 £429,204.53 

Legal Fees £200.00 £200.00 

Monitoring  £43,644.69 £47,144.69 

Open Space £23,440.00 £23,440.00 

Open Space 
(Allotment) 

£20,719.41 £15,999.41 

Open Space 
(LEAPS&NEAPS) 

£116,121.62 £116,121.62 

Open Space (Sports) £85,375.00 £85,375.00 

Open Space/Ecology £49,808.45 £49,808.45 

Parking £255,000.00 £255,000.00 

Youth Facilities £882,993.69 £319,793.60 

Total £2,789,560.82 £1,735,916.42 

 

Set out below is the total amount of funding spent since 1992. 

 

 

  

Page 129



APPENDIX 1 

Purpose Amount Spent 

Open Space (LEAPS&NEAPS) £44,000.00 

Health Facilities £30,001.44 

Open Space £23,440.00 

Parking £255,000.00 

Open Space (Allotment) £8,000.00 

Affordable Housing £226,674.00 

Monitoring  £0.00 

Open Space/Ecology £49,808.45 

Open Space (Sports) £85,375.00 

Legal Fees £0.00 

Ecology inc 1 x RAMS £0.00 

Cycle/Footway Improvements £1,368.99 

Youth Facilities £0.00 

Total £723,667.88 

 

Set out below is the amount of funding still to be paid by developers for infrastructure 

in Maldon District. 

 

 

  

Page 130



APPENDIX 1 

Purpose Amount left to remit in 

Affordable Housing £108,000.00 

Ecology inc 1 x RAMS £150,478.40 

Health Facilities £793,946.00 

Monitoring  -£3,830.00 (this is a developer 
overpayment) 

Open Space (Allotment) £4,720.00 

Youth Facilities £563,200.09 

Total £1,053,314.40 

 

In the financial year 2021/22 the Council did not have to refund any funding to 

developers regarding S106 clauses going out of time. 

5.0 Affordable Homes 
 

5.1 The Council’s LDP Policy H1 encourages developers to build between 25% and 40% 

of their development in the District as affordable homes.  The actual percentage will 

depend on the specific location of the development in the district and the viability of 

the scheme in financial terms.  The Council encourages the affordable homes to be 

delivered on the individual development sites wherever possible, where they can be 

dedicated to households that need them.  In some circumstances, this may not be 

possible and then an agreed financially equivalent sum of money (the amount paid 

for an Affordable Unit that is of the greatest demand by Strategic Housing at that 

point in time) may be paid as a contribution. 

This important aspect of on-site provision represents a significant contribution to the 

number of new homes provided to meet the affordable housing need of the District. 

What is meant by an “Affordable Home” is defined in the LDP and in the Annex 2 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework3. 

In the financial year 2020/21, the Council was informed and verified through site visits 

and related datasets that the following new affordable homes were delivered in the 

District, as set out in the table below. 

 

  

                                                             
3
 Since the introduction of the Government’s First Homes Scheme in May 2021, the term may also include homes 

that are made available on the free market with a government subsidy for the first owners of new homes. 

Sites Rented Shared Ownership

Theedhams Farm, Southminster 7

Maldon Road, Burnham on Crouch 16 8

Handley Gardens, Maldon 24

Kings Road, Southminster 6

Wyke Place, Maldon 17 4

North Fambridge 8

Southminster Road, Burnham on Crouch 3 2

Total 81 14

Page 131

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


APPENDIX 1 

5.2 The total number of housing completions in 2021/22 was 330.  Therefore, the 95 

affordable housing completions represents approx. 28% per cent of the total number 

of new homes completed for the period and provided approximately £25,200,000 

worth4 of new housing stock to the identified Registered Providers who will manage 

and maintain them for current and future residents of the District who are in 

affordable housing need. 

 

6.0 Governance 
 

6.1 In 2021, the Mid and South Essex NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

appointed its first Planning Officer who now supports Councils in the CCG area and 

vice-versa with the delivery of health-related projects that have benefited from s106 

contributions.  Although no monies were drawn down in 2021/2022, the collaboration 

between the council and CCG has been significantly improved, with meetings now 

taking place every 6-8 weeks with a project action log tracking progress. 

6.2 The Council is also liaising with Essex County Council on the delivery of its 

infrastructure (primary and secondary schools’ expansion, early-years facilities, 

highways, etc.) to establish a better understanding of infrastructure upgrades and 

project delivery timetables.  This will not only provide a clearer picture of delivery but 

will assist in planning for new infrastructure within the LDP Review.  Officers meet 

with ECC on a 6-weekly cycle and ensure that liaison is occurring when there is 

potential for combined or overlapping health and ECC infrastructure. 

6.3  Although the Council’s own projects, which are seeking to invest s106 contributions 

have been delayed during 2020/2021, primarily owing to the Covid-19 pandemic, the 

Council will continue to progress with delivery during 2022/2023 with a view to project 

delivery expenditure taking place in future years. 

6.4  In the interests of transparency, alongside this IFS and available to download from 

our website, is an MSExcel spreadsheet of all the S106 agreements relating to the 

District.  The spreadsheet sets out the funding due-in, received and spent and what 

each clause in the agreements relate to. 

  

                                                             
4
 This figure is based on a sample of homes valued at the point of handover to a Registered Provider in Oct. 

2020 with an uplift for inflated build costs. 

Page 132



APPENDIX 1 

Appendix A – Essex County Council S106 Funding Details 

 

Please note this information was provided by ECC and is accurate to 31 March 2022. 

 

 

The funding has been spent on the following: 

 Maintenance to Toucan Crossings in Maldon 

 Improvements to public transport services Maldon/Heybridge 

 Primary School Transportation 

 Burnham-on-Crouch Primary School 

 All Saints Primary School, Maldon 

 Improvements works on the junction of B1010 and the B1021 

 Various minor highway and public transport improvements. 

The County Council are presently preparing to deliver a new primary school in 

Maldon/Heybridge, an expansion of both the Plume Academy in Maldon and Ormiston Rivers 

Academy in Burnham on Crouch.  They are still waiting for the relevant triggers to be met and 

funding to be remitted for highway works in Maldon/Heybridge. 

CODE For Purpose Total Amount Due In Amount Received Amount Spent Amount left to remit in

Education £15,752,488.48 £10,057,029.68 £77,277.36 £5,695,458.80

Highways £9,252,661.08 £2,718,487.12 £338,481.19 £6,534,173.96

Public Transport £1,521,283.59 £440,539.93 £263,362.42 £1,080,743.66

Travel Plan £9,000.00 £3,000.00 £0.00 £6,000.00

Education/Transport £519,221.87 £141,894.32 £41,694.37 £377,327.55

Total £27,054,655.02 £13,360,951.05 £720,815.34 £13,693,703.97

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 
EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION OFFICERS 

to 
PERFORMANCE, GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
21 JULY 2022 
 
EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION ACTIONS UPDATE - ANNUAL REVIEW 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To update the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee on the progress 

towards achieving the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) objectives set out within 
in the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy, please see below: 

 

 Objective 1:  We will identify the ways to improve our workforce data collection 
which will be used to inform policy development and workforce strategy. 
 

 Objective 2:  We will provide learning opportunities for our workforce and our 
Members to develop a wider understanding of our communities and their diverse 
needs. 
 

 Objective 3:  As officers and Members, we will improve our knowledge of, and our  
 contact with, all communities and ensure that communities can continue to be 

involved in decision making processes. 
   

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
(i) That the Committee reviews the report, and notes progress and the EDI 

action plan; 
 
To the Council 

 
(ii) That the Council’s constitution be updated to reflect gender neutral terms 

rather than him/chairman from the options as set out in section 3.5 of this 
report, and member salutations are removed as standard practice. 
 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion policy was approved by the Strategy and 3.1

Resources Committee in June 2021, in line with the Public Sector Equality Duty 
within the Equality Act 2010. 

 
 The report has an action plan looking at what has been achieved and the approach 3.2

going forwards. 
 

 The Action Plan is held on the Council’s SharePoint system and updated by 3.3
responsible officers. 

 
 Currently Councillor R H Siddall is the EDI Member Sponsor. 3.4

Page 135

Agenda Item 8



 
 The Council’s constitution and current practices use the term ‘chairman’ and ‘him’.  3.5

However, the Association of Democratic Officers confirm it is best practice to move 
away from gender specific titles and this would also be in keeping with the EDI policy.  
Many Councils have already adopted this working practice.  This report recommends 
removing the word "Chairman" and replacing it with "Chair" or "Chairperson" and also 
ensuring the use of his/her, s/he, or better still non-binary language: “their/them/they” 
as appropriate, accepting that an individual may refer to themselves or want to be 
addressed as “Chairman” or “Chairwoman” or other term, if they so wished. 

  
 The current table of actions/objectives and Officer updates are detailed below for 3.6

Members’ information (APPENDIX 1).  This action plan highlights the EDI objectives 
the Council is currently working towards and what has been achieved thus far.  This 
enables plan enables the Council to monitor and review progress.  

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 The information provided gives progress updates against the key actions defined in  4.1

the Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion Policy. 
 

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES 

 
5.1 The Council’s EDI objectives will enable delivery of strategic priorities going forwards. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – The Council’s internal and external customers are 

its employees and community; it has a legal obligation to uphold by doing 
what is statutorily required in terms of employment law and the Equality Act. 
 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – please refer to the existing impact assessment on the 
EDI Policy. 
 

(iii) Impact on Risk –Good governance and compliance with Equality legislation 
will help minimise our corporate risk for the future. 
 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The monitoring and delivery of this item 
is provided within existing resources and utilising the corporate training 
budget to support on training for staff and the Members training budget for 
member training. 
 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – The monitoring and delivery of this item is 
provided within existing resources. 
 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – Not applicable. 
 

(vii) Impact on Strengthening Communities - The Council will continue to work 
and build on the strengths and capabilities of the communities to find solutions 
that are right for and work for them.  We will work collaboratively with our 
communities to promote Maldon District as an inclusive, diversity-friendly 
district and encourage active participation in civic life by all local people. 
 

Background Papers: Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion Policy and Technology, 
Entertainment, and Design, (TED) Learning report. 

Page 136



 
Enquiries to: Natasha Brown HR Specialist, Joshua Fulcher Strategy Theme Lead, 
Community and Luke Daley Customer Solutions Co-ordinator. 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Theme Focus area Outcome Actions Timescales Progress 
Objective 1: To 
continue to create a 
better understanding of 
our workforce.  

 

A staff Inclusion survey 
will be undertaken to 
review if staff feel we 
have an inclusive 
culture; to understand 
the diversity of our 
workforce and explore 
ways in which we can 
attract 
underrepresented 
groups. 

Identifying training 
needs to meet priority 
need 
 
An inclusion survey to 
check with employees 
what it feels like to 
work at the District 
Council, so we can 
understand how we 
can create an inclusive 
culture where all staff 
feel welcome, 
respected and able to 
achieve their best 

We will engage with 
staff using an inclusion 
survey.  
 
Analysis of the survey 
by the working group. 
 
Undertake focus 
groups as identified. 

 

September 2022 We will first introduce 
some inclusion 
questions to the 
workforce at the 
Summer Showcase in 
July 2022. These 
questions will also be 
incorporated into the 
next pulse staff survey 
also in July 2022.  
 
We will explain the 
terms equality, diversity, 
and inclusion, so that 
there is an 
understanding of those 
terms before employees 
respond to the survey. 

Objective 2: We will 
provide learning 
opportunities for our 
workforce and our 
Members to develop  
a wider understanding 
of our communities and 
their diverse needs 

As part of the first 
phase of the training 
programme, we 
successfully delivered 
TED Learning actor led 
training on Equality, 
Inclusion and Diversity 
to our workforce, and 
ACAS Equalities 
training to our Elected 
Members  
 
Please see the 
feedback APPENDIX 2 

This training was 
completed in March 
2022, 80% of our 
workforce and 30% of 
Members attend this 
awareness training with 
planned maintenance 
training provision for 
new staff during 
2022/2023. 
 

The second phase of 
the training plan will 
enable awareness and 
understanding of 
disability and inclusion.  
 
We will consult with 
Elected Members on 
their EDI training 
needs. We will then 
review and consider 
with the EDI working 
group and present a 
training plan at 
committee.  

December 2022 For employees, setting 
aside budget from the 
corporate training 
budget and for Members 
through their learning 
and development 
budget. 
 

Objective 1: 
Menopause Guide 

A Menopause Guide as 
part of a Wellbeing 
Policy will be 
introduced to the 
Workforce and Elected 

This will give everyone 
a better understanding 
of how to support 
others in the workplace 
and in undertaking their 

To be launched at the 
Summer Showcase on 
4 July 2022 to the 
workforce. 

July 2022 This will form part of the 
work on our Wellbeing 
Policy. This will be 
added as an appendix.  

P
age 139



APPENDIX 1 

Theme Focus area Outcome Actions Timescales Progress 
Members. roles, 

Objective 1: Disability 
Confident 

To enable the Council 
to support the 
recruitment and 
retention of people with 
disabilities 

Self-assessment to 
continue as Disability 
Confident level 1 has 
been completed 

Actions are being 
undertaken to work 
towards Disability 
Confident level 2 
including awareness 
sessions for staff 

December 2022 Working on the action 
place to obtain Disability 
Confident level 2. 

Identify the needs of 
our services users 
utilising customer 
feedback and 
developing actions to 
meet them. 

Identify the needs of 

our service users 

utilising reports. This 

will help us develop a 

more targeted 

approach in how we 

deliver our services to 

the most vulnerable 

residents who cannot 

access our services. 

These people are what 

our F2F service should 

be available for. 

 

 

 
Working with the 
performance team, 
looking at adding 
additional questions to 
existing customer 
surveys. 
 

Utilising new reporting 

tools to monitor 

demand both coming 

through the contact 

centre as well as 

customers approaching 

the F2F service 

following the 

commencement of the 

appointment service. 

 

Following a review of 

the data we can look at 

options around how we 

can have a more 

targeted approach to 

the delivery of our F2F 

support for those who 

need it e.g., community 

hubs, working with 

partner organizations, 

‘drop-in sessions’, 

working with partners 

who have active 

connections with 

vulnerable groups. 

 

Develop an action plan 
based on the findings 
from the survey.  
 
Identify trends from the 
reporting of both the 
telephone system as 
well as F2F contact at 
the council offices to be 
able to develop a more 
targeted approach in 
the way we deliver our 
services to those who 
need it most. 

Ongoing Have worked with IT to 
develop reporting tool 
for F2F contact. 
 
Will continue to monitor 
for trends and review 
the way we deliver our 
services to those who 
require support the 
most. 

Objective 3: Improve Continue to work with This will foster good In partnership with the February 2022 Complete action – Work 

P
age 140



APPENDIX 1 

Theme Focus area Outcome Actions Timescales Progress 
our knowledge and 
contact of communities 
ensuring all 
communities are 
involved. 

partners and our 

communities to further 

the council’s 

understanding of the 

experiences of 

residents from 

protected groups and 

those experiencing 

other forms of 

inequality such as a 

poverty. 

relations with and 

within in our 

communities and work 

with them to address 

their needs. 

Maldon and District 
Community, Voluntary 
Service and Salvation 
Army launch Maldon 
District Food Support 
Network to support 
service users. 
 

ongoing 
 
The Maldon District 
Food Support Network 
was launched in March 
2022 with partners from 
across the district in 
attendance. 

Launch Maldon District 
Digital Inclusion Group 
to assess challenges 
residents in the district 
face and how 
technology and digital 
solutions can assist 
with this. 
 

March 2022 Complete action – Work 
ongoing 

 
The group includes 
representatives from 
Clarion Housing, 
Moat Foundation, United 
in Kind, Active Essex, 
Maldon Pioneers. The 
group has undertaken 
a mapping exercise to 
highlight the 
existing provision in 
the District and to 
understand where there 
are gaps.  
 
 

Ensure Member 
representation on the 
Maldon District 
Dementia Action 
Alliance 

July 2021 Complete action – Work 
ongoing 
 
Cllr Anne Beale was 
Member representative 
2021 – 2022  
 
Cllr Carlie Mayes is the 
current Member 
representative. 

  MDC officers to Ongoing Ongoing 

P
age 141

https://maldondistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/ThematicStrategies/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7B81FDC14B-7B69-402D-B976-E2E294A11AC1%7D&file=Maldon%20District%20Digital%20Inclusion%20Group-%20Mapping%20Exercise.xlsx&action=default&mobileredirect=true


APPENDIX 1 

Theme Focus area Outcome Actions Timescales Progress 
continue to attend and 
influence the Maldon 
and District Community 
Forum. 

Create a Community 
Engagement database 
which allows for 
efficient distribution of 
news/updates to 
communities. 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Objective 3: Work with 
communities and our 
partners to improve 
accessibility and 
inclusion across the 
district. 

Continue to work with 

our partners and 

communities to ensure 

our services, 

community services 

and groups are 

accessible and 

inclusive for all. 

This will ensure that 

Maldon District is a 

place where all 

residents can live, work 

and relax.  

Commission a 
company to carry out 
an access audit of local 
high streets and play 
areas across the 
district. 

April 2022 The Council 
commissioned Purple to 
carry out the access 
audit. 
 
Please see hyperlink for 
Access Audit Exec 
Summary 
 
Work is ongoing to 
deliver the 
recommendations 
proposed. 

Source funding for 
Changing Places 
Toilets to be installed in 
Blackwater Leisure 
Centre and Dengie 
100. 

July 2023 The Council has been 
awarded £100,000 to 
install the Changing 
Places Toilets in 
Blackwater Leisure 
Centre and Dengie 100  
 

Objective 3: Work with 
our communities and 
partner to; encourage 
opportunities for 
diverse communities to 
come together and to 
help promote 

Work with communities 
and partners to 
develop and deliver 
planned community 
events to promote 
community cohesion 
throughout the year. 

Work with communities 
and partners to help 
support diversity-
related events such as 
International Women’s 
Day, LGBTQ+ History 
Month, Black History 

Delivery of Black 
History Month 2021; 
Genevieve Rycroft 
Case Study. 

October – November 
2021 

Complete 

Pride Flag raised for 
Pride Month. 

June 2021 
 
 

Complete 

P
age 142

file:///C:/Users/joshua/Desktop/Maldon%20DC%20Access%20Audit%20Exec%20Summary.docx
file:///C:/Users/joshua/Desktop/Maldon%20DC%20Access%20Audit%20Exec%20Summary.docx


APPENDIX 1 

Theme Focus area Outcome Actions Timescales Progress 
community cohesion.  Month, etc. 

 
June 2022 Ongoing 

Create and deliver a 
celebratory event 
where communities 
can come together and 
promote community 
cohesion 

October 2022 Ongoing – creation of 
UFest- delivery date 8 
July 2022.  
 
Awarded £9,300 from 
National Lottery to 
deliver UFest 
 

Black History Month 
2022 

October 2022 Currently in the process 
of organising a Black 
History Month event with 
Maldon District 
residents. 

 

P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



how did we do?

t e d l e a r n in
g .

c o
. u

k

come on in

APPENDIX 2

P
age 145

https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/


ted learning was delighted to support 
Maldon District Council with the rollout of 
IED training for staff on 17th and 25th of 

January and 2nd Feb 2022.
 

The trainer for the programme was Justin 
Smith-Essex who delivered all 3 workshops.

Over 75% of learners had their cameras on for the 

duration of the training.  Of those who didn’t, 60% 

still engaged with the learning and spoke with their 

camera off and others used the chat facility to 

engage with the trainer.

 

The group was highly engaged, asking lots of ques-

tions and wanting to discuss the scenes and relate 

to personal experiences or challenges within MDC.

introduction

4.7
out of 5

for the for the for the

overall learning
experience trainer actors

da
ni

s i m onju s tin

jerry

4.8
out of 5

4.7
out of 5

january

17
january

25
february

2

learners rated their experience overall:

APPENDIX 2

P
age 146



So...
what did the

learners think?

tell me! t e ll me!

APPENDIX 2

P
age 147



I felt this type of session worked 
really well for me it was informative 

and interactive. The timing was 
perfect and didn’t seem to drag on 
like other courses I have been on. 
The videos were interesting and I 

could really relate that they were real 
life scenarios. 

Interaction was perfect and
allowed for all to take part. 

The actors were fun and provided 
respite and breaks from talking and 

enable learners to see first hand
what an example might look like. 

The trainer was engaging and
provided real evidence and

reasons, sound knowledge of
the subject area.

It was engaging and felt like it went 
quicker than 2 1/2 hours. 

Good that the trainer didn’t pick on 
people to answer questions as it can 
be sensitive topic that people might 

not be comfortable talking about.

For a remote training 
session, the presenter did 
very well to keep it from 
becoming uninteresting.

The actors helped to keep it 
active and entertaining.

informative & interactive

APPENDIX 2

P
age 148



The Course was short and concise
while allowing for good feedback. 
Actors and scenarios were good. 

Presenter controlled flow well and
was knowledgeable.

Courses can seem a bit preachey but 
this course was able to keep that to a 

minimum and deliver the core message.

Actors were really 
good totally in

character.

A lot more interesting 
than I thought it was 

going to be.

I personally felt uncomfortable as white 
male that certain situations that where 

acted out I felt were wrongly perceived I 
have experienced racism & discrimination 
& seen in mainly from other ethnicitys not 
just from white British people acted out 

within this video.

ted response – we took this feedback on 
board and mentioned this in future 

sessions.

sh

or
t & co

ncise

APPENDIX 2

P
age 149



I gave excellent ratings! I felt 
comfortable expressing and 

talking out loud in the sessions! 
Sometimes I feel uncomfortable 

talking in an actual room! So 
online worked for me!

The actors portrayed 
their characters

very well.

Really informative
- I really struggle with virtual training 

especially when I can see work 
popping in that I should be looking at 

but this course kept me engaged.

The course was good, very
knowledgeable trainer and the

sketches really helped make the 
necessary points. The only feedback 

I’d give is that 5 mins is not enough for 
the first task - purely because it’s the 
first thing we do and it takes a while 
for people to warm up - by the time 

we were into the swing of it we’d
run out of time.

very knowled geable trainer

APPENDIX 2

P
age 150



My trainer was very informative
which made the ted learning

experience much more interesting,
he was enthusiastic and happy to

answer any questions.
The actors were good also.

The point where we are put into 
groups didn't work as us three were 

sharing a tv screen & our tablets. If we 
had been in the same group it would 
have been a lot easier as we had 3 

groups being heard in one room here.

ted response - this was one of the 
first sessions, and we amended later 

ones to address this issue Very good
training.

On line training is 
never going to be 

the best option, but 
this was good.

enthusiastic

& happy

APPENDIX 2

P
age 151



As this course has widened my 
knowledge around areas such as 
harassment and the differences 

between direct and indirect
discrimination. All topics covered 

were extremely important as apart
of our role and everyday life. The Trainer was engaging, focused 

and gave excellent examples to
underline the issues. The actors made 

it very real to the extent I felt
uncomfortable and very aware of the 
importance of applying appropriate 
respectful behaviour in everyday life 

not to mention the workplace.

Excellent approach
- taught in easily digestible chunks and 
scenes were engaging and funny which 
makes what could be a dry topic more 

memorable and relatable.

Excellent delivery, 
very engaging and 
thought provoking.

the actors made it very real

APPENDIX 2

P
age 152



The best training course I have done.  
A good mix of interaction, videos, 

presenting with the inclusion of real 
life examples. The videos with actors 
were great at bringing the situations 

to life rather than reading a case 
study. The interaction level was good 
without feeling like you were put on 

the spot. Really engaging.

Thoroughly enjoyed the training. 
Justin was very informative and 
answered all questions asked,

watching the short video's made
the training interesting. Thank you.

The actors were very good, 
delivered the sessions so 

that you were able to
understand what you

were looking for.

The trainer did really well especially 
in terms of engaging everyone, I 
definitely felt like he made every 

effort to include each of us
(I'm just one of those that tends

to sit back I'm afraid) 

co

urse i h ave
 done

th

e best t ra
ining 

APPENDIX 2

P
age 153



What other ted learning courses did your team
say they would like to experience??

Negotiating &
influencing Interviewing Time

management
mental
health

coaching communication
skills

Managing &
developing

a team

customer
service

click on the squiggles to learn all about these amazing courses!

APPENDIX 2

P
age 154

https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/cracking-coaching-skills/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/interview-skills/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/influencing-skills/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/mental-health-awareness-in-the-workplace/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/customer-excellence/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/first-steps-into-management/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/getting-stuff-done/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/team-building-training/


L e a r n i n g

t e d l e a r n i n
g .

c o
. u

k

t e d l e a r n i n g . c o . u k / t e d l e a r n i n g@ t e d l e a r n i n g 1

© Copyright squaricle Group 2022. All rights reserved. No part of this material may be reproduced, copied, delivered or used 
in any manner without prior written permission of the copyright owner squaricle Group. 

APPENDIX 2

P
age 155

https://www.facebook.com/tedlearning
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/blended-learning-online-learning/
https://www.tedlearning.co.uk/
https://twitter.com/TedLearning1


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	6 Internal Audit Report
	6a Progress Report
	6b Follow-Up of Recommendations Report
	6c Workforce Management - 2021/2022
	6d Customer Relationship Management (CRM)- 2021/2022
	6e Internal Audit Annual Report and Annual Statement of Assurance - 2021/2022
	6f Risk Maturity - 2022/2023
	6g Corporate Governance - 2022/2023
	7 Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS)
	Appendix 1

	8 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Action Update- Annual Review
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2




